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Corporate Information
LFEEH
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Corporate Information
LFEEH

OTHER PLACES OF BUSINESS
HONG KONG AND MACAU
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No. 7-11 Tai Wong Street East
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Rua Da Ribeira Do Patane No. 13, Macau
Tel: (853) 2855 3693
Fax: (853) 2895 1020
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Sections M and N of Lot 3719 in DD104
Yuen Long, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2471 9048

Fax: (852) 2482 1298

MAINLAND CHINA

Bun Kee Building Material (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd

No. 3 Langwei Road, Xiaolong Village
Shiji Town, Panyu District
Guangzhou, People’s Republic of China
Tel: (8620) 6194 9418
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WEBSITE

http://www.chinapipegroup.com
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| am pleased to present to our shareholders the annual
report of China Pipe Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
year ended 31st December 2013.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31st December 2013, the Group
recorded a revenue of approximately of HK$504.1
million (2012: HK$455.1 million), representing an
increase of about 10.8% compared to 2012. The profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company increased
by 21.9% to HK$16.7 million (2012: HK$13.7 million).
Gross profit margin was approximately 23.7% as
compared to 23.0% last year.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of the Company does not
recommend a final dividend for the year ended 31st
December 2013 (2012: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group continues, through its wholly owned
subsidiary, Bun Kee (International) Limited (“Bun Kee”),
to focus on its business as a leading supplier of pipes,
fittings and other related accessories and logistics
services in Hong Kong and Macau. At Bun Kee, we
pride ourselves as one-stop provider of wide range
of pipes and fittings at competitive prices. With many
years of experience in pipes and fittings business, Bun
Kee is able to offer the market with complete suite of
services ranging from products sourcing to logistics
services. We serve numerous and diverse customer
base including some notable customers.
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Chairman’s Statement
EREHRE

During the year under review, the Group has involved in
supply of its products to numerous projects including
public and private housing and MTR projects. Our sales
orders on hand will keep us busy well into the next
new financial year. In Hong Kong, the Group continued
to benefit from the growth path of the housing and
infrastructure projects. In Macau, the casino expansion
projects presented the opportunity to the Group.
QOur sales to Macau are on the upward trend. We are
pleased to see the improvements in both our revenue
and profit. Nonetheless, we must remain vigilant to the
challenges ahead.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, we note the business environment will
continue to remain competitive. Notwithstanding that,
we remain cautiously optimistic about the outlook of
the Group.

Qur business is closely related to the construction
industry. We are pleased to see that construction and
infrastructure projects will continue to be promising in
the coming years. We also see strong demand from the
public and private housing projects and the ongoing
expansion railway network.

In order to achieve business sustainability, we will
continue to deliver on our strategy of providing
best quality products at competitive prices. Quality,
customer satisfaction, efficient logistics and storage
services are the pillars on which the success of Bun
Kee was built on over the past years. In order to
maintain our competitive advantage, we will continue
to focus on our core strength and value. With our
experienced team, we will explore all opportunities and
growth prospects both in Hong Kong and overseas.
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APPRECIATION

| would like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere gratitude to our shareholders, customers,
suppliers and banks for their continuous support. |
would also like to thank our Directors, management
team and employees for their valuable contributions
and dedication to the Group.

Lai Guanglin
Chairman
Hong Kong, 21st March 2014
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Mission and Strategy
{& o B R BR

The business of the Group was commenced in 1949
as a pipe’s retail shop. Now the Group has developed
into a sizeable company and become a listed company
in the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited on 21st December 2000. We root in
Hong Kong over 60 years and are the mainstay of the
industry.

The principal business of the Group is the importing
and selling of a comprehensive range of pipes, fittings
and other related accessories of different materials,
applications and brandnames in Hong Kong by Bun
Kee (International) Limited (“Bun Kee”). Sales of the
Group’s products are conducted either by wholesale
or retail sale. We offered quality goods storage
and logistic services for local main contractors and
landlords. Throughout the vyears, the Group has
supplied quality piping materials to many landmark
projects in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China.

The mission of the Group is to provide high quality
products to the customers and serve with value-added
and excellent customer services.

In attaining the above, we provide “one-stop-shop”
platform that provides high quality and a variety of
pipes and fittings that readily available to our customers
in ways that meet their needs and exceed their
expectations.

Whenever you think pipes and fittings, think Bun Kee.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONS
OVERVIEW

2013 marked a steady growth for the Group. The
Group’s revenue rose by 10.8% from HK$455.1 million
to HK$504.1 million in 2013, mainly attributable to the
promising construction market in 2013. The net profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company for the
year under review was approximately HK$16.7 million
(2012: HK$13.7 million), representing an increase of
21.9% over 2012.

The increase in both revenue and profit was mainly
contributed from the blooming construction works in
Hong Kong and Macau during the year under review.
We believe that the growth trend will continue in the
coming years.

For the year ended 31st December 2013, selling and
distribution costs grew 11.5%, in tandem with the
higher sales volume and higher volume of operational
activities. General and administrative expenses rose
10.9% in 2013 mainly due to the increase in the staff
costs and the rental expenses. Other gains decreased
by 43.5% from HK$4.6 milion to HK$2.6 million
which was largely due to the one-off compensation
income received from the Hong Kong Government in
relation to the resumption of a leased property of the
Group in 2012. Finance income and finance costs
were increased and decreased respectively due to the
increase in operating cash inflows for deposits and the
early settlement of the loans.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THERBFWRR S

PROSPECTS

Looking forward, we believe that the demand for
building materials will remain strong in view of
continuing growth in a large number of housing and
infrastructure projects in Hong Kong and Macau.
Against this backdrop, the Group is cautiously
optimistic on its core business operation in 2014.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
ANALYSIS

As at 31st December 2013, the cash and bank
balances of the Group were approximately HK$176.2
million (2012: HK$121.2 million) including pledged
bank deposits, which amounted to HK$69.2 million
(2012: HK$94.3 million). Basically the Group’s working
capital requirement has been financed by its internal
resources. The funds generated from operations and
the available banking facilities will enable the Group to
meet its future working capital requirements.

As at 31st December 2013, the Group had aggregate
banking facilities of trade finance of approximately
HK$168.5 million (2012: HK$138.0 million),
approximately HK$117.3 million (2012: HK$85.5
million) was utilised. The Group’s total borrowings
stood at approximately HK$96.8 million (2012:
HK$67.7 million), the entire amount of borrowings for
both years end will mature within one year.

The entire amount of borrowings outstanding as at 31st
December 2013 was approximately HK$96.8 million
(2012: HK$67.7 million), subject to fixed rates.

The gearing ratio as measured by total debt to total
equity was approximately 29% as at 31st December
2013 (2012: 22%).

As at 31st December 2012 and 2013, the entire

amount of the Group’s borrowings was denominated in
HK dollars.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group conducts its business transactions mainly in
Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi, United States dollar and
Euro. In order to manage foreign exchange risk, the
Group has been closely monitoring its foreign currency
exposure and will arrange for any hedging facilities if
necessary.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31st December 2013, certain bank deposits held
by subsidiaries of the Group with an aggregate carrying
amounts of approximately HK$69.2 milion (2012:
HK$94.3 million) were pledged to banks for banking
facilities.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as at 31st December 2012 and 2013.

STAFF AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31st December 2013, the Group employed a
total of 189 employees (2012: 187). Total employee
benefit expenses for the year ended 31st December
2013 was approximately HK$59.4 million (2012:
HK$52.8 million).

Remuneration policy is reviewed annually and certain
staff members are entitled to sales commission. In
addition to the basic salaries and contributions to
the mandatory provident fund, the Group also pays
discretionary bonus and provides staff with other
benefits including medical scheme for Hong Kong
employees. The Group contributes to an employee
pension scheme established by the PRC Government
which undertakes to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired employees
of the Group in Mainland China. The Group operates
a share option scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible directors and
employees of the Group in recognition of their
contribution to the Group.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREBARCEE

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out below:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lai Guanglin, aged 50, was appointed as a
director and the Chairman of the board of the directors
of the Company in February 2009. He is also the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. The
Company is a leading provider to the construction
sector offering a wide range of pipe related products,
services and solutions to the constructors, designers,
consultants and government agencies in Hong Kong
and Macau. Mr. Lai’s wholly owned investment vehicle,
Singapore Zhongxin Investment Company Limited, is
the majority shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Lai is the founder and the Chairman of the board
of directors of Agria Corporation which is listed on
the New York Stock Exchange. Agria Corporation
is primarily engaged in research and development,
production and sale of crop seeds to the agricultural
sector in Australia, New Zealand, China and South
America and the provision of rural services to the
farmers in New Zealand and South America. Agria
Corporation operates the Southern Hemisphere’s
largest forage seed business in New Zealand. The
activities in forage seeds and rural services are carried
out by PGG Wrightson Limited (“PGW”) which is a
subsidiary of Agria Corporation. PGW is a company
listed on the New Zealand Stock Exchange. Mr. Lai
was appointed as a director of PGW in December 2009
and as the Chairman of the Board of the Directors
of PGW in October 2013. Mr. Lai’'s wholly owned
investment vehicle, Brothers Capital Limited, is Agria
Corporation’s largest shareholder.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Lai has extensive experience in investments,
acquisitions and operation management. Mr. Lai has
established many other enterprises in China, Hong
Kong and internationally, in particular, animation,
logistics and transportation, pharmaceutical sectors,
etc. He takes a leading role in respect of strategic
planning and business development in his investment
portfolio.

Mr. Lai is the Vice Chairman of Shenzhen General
Chamber of Commerce in China.

Mr. Lai holds a bachelor’s degree in accounting from
Monash University, Melbourne, Australia and a master
of business administration in finance from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is a certified public
accountant in Australia.

Mr. Lai is the elder brother of Mr. Lai Fulin, an Executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Lai is the sole director of
Singapore Zhongxin Investment Company Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company which has an
interest in the shares of the Company that is required
to be disclosed under Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREBARCEE

Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng, aged 49, was appointed as
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company in May 2009. Mr. Yu is responsible for
managing overall daily operations of the Group and the
implementation of the Group’s development strategies.
Mr. Yu has over 20 years of experience in investment
management, investment banking and general
management of listed companies. Mr. Yu began his
career at Mackenzie Financial Corporation in Toronto,
Canada as an investment analyst in 1989 and since
then, he has served several major financial corporations
including J.P. Morgan, Deutsche Bank and CITIC
Capital. In addition to his vast investment banking and
management experience, Mr. Yu has also managed
listed companies such as New World Cyberbase
Limited and Asia Logistics Holdings Limited in Hong
Kong. During his past career, Mr. Yu has focused
on direct investment and mergers and acquisitions
activities in sectors including construction materials,
infrastructure, energy, technologies, media and financial
services.

Mr. Yu has a Bachelor of Arts degree in English
Literature from the Beijing Foreign Studies University, a
Master of Arts degree in Education from the University
of Toronto and a Master's degree in Business
Administration from the University of Western Ontario.

Mr. Yu is a director of King Jade Holdings Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company which has an
interest in the shares of the Company that is required
to be disclosed under Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.
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Mr. Lai Fulin, aged 48, was appointed as Executive
Director of the Company in October 2009. Mr. Lai
is Head of Production & Purchasing of the Group
and mainly responsible for the overall operation and
management of the production and purchasing
department. Mr. Lai has over 20 years of experience
in the banking sector, investments management and
general management of companies in China. Mr. Lai
worked in the Bank of China in Shenzhen during 1986
to 2001. During 1995 to 2001, he was the deputy
general manager of a subsidiary of Bank of China
dealing with businesses in the securities industry.
During 2002 to 2008, Mr. Lai was the general manager
of Shenzhen Huao Guanli Technologies Company
Limited CRINTTERTBHEHXBEEXBRAF]).

Mr. Lai holds a certificate of graduation in Chinese
Language from Shenzhen Institute of Education G312k

B2k).

Mr. Lai is the younger brother of Mr. Lai Guanglin, the
controlling shareholder, the Chairman and Executive
Director of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. U Kean Seng, aged 47, was appointed as
Non-executive Director of the Company in February
2009. He is also a member of the Audit Committee
of the Company. Mr. U has more than 18 years of
experience in legal practice. Mr. U specialises in the
area of corporate law and corporate finance. Mr.
U was admitted to the Supreme Court of Victoria,
Australia in 1991, the Singapore Bar in 1993 and
the Roll of Solicitors for England and Wales in 2009.
Mr. U holds a bachelor’'s degree in economics and
a bachelor’'s degree in laws (Honours) from Monash
University, Australia. Mr. U currently holds the
professional appointment as the Head of Corporate
and Legal Affairs of Agria Corporation, a company
listed on the New York Stock Exchange. Brothers
Capital Limited, an investment vehicle wholly-owned

EFREREEARCZEE

BB E 8% RN_ETNFTARZERAR
AlZBITES - BEERAKBLEENRRB AL
TZATAENRBHERLENREE BEALER
MEERITE - REEERGCEEETERAEB20F
Koo BEAR—NN\ARFE2E_ZZT-FHRTERR
PEBTRITDT R NANAFE_TT—F
HE - REHETFERTE T 2R AR FERLE—
BN -T2 _Fx_ZT/\FHH  BEELER
NHERENRREXERARREIE B -

BEERARBREZRPXRABREFE -

FESE A ThLai Guanglin o4 (R A B2 IR R ~ £ E 3%
HITER) 2B -

FRITES

RBREE 475 R_ZETNE_AEZTAEAEAR
BIZIENITES - FHAABARRIEZEZEGHE - &
EEBEBOISF 2 EARNELR  REEBRESE
RAERDERESES - REER— NI —FEIFR
MEZ R DN ERERRBAER - R—NAN=ZFBE
FIEREMAGRIUER  WHRZEZNFREFR
AR TR S R MR AT &R o REEFFARM
Monash University < &8 B2 2 T2 RAS 2 T2
(2) REABNEEZEXRGE A —RRANFE
(35 G P E WA ] Agria Corporation 2 1% AR =7
#ES o Lai Guanglin £ £ 2B ¥ B K1 & A 7] Brothers
Capital Limited 2 Agria Corporation 2 S AR » 7=
T-ZHF+ZAMA - REEEZERPGG Wrightson
Limited(—REHMABEFRX BN ETHRR]) 2E
FoREENRZZETNFAAELHEZZT—Z=F1+=
A=+ —BBEEFMEESZZABRAR([FM

—ZT—=FF3 Annual Report 2013

15



16

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREBARCEE

by Mr. Lai Guanglin, is the largest shareholder of Agria
Corporation. Mr. U was appointed as a director of
PGG Wrightson Limited, a company listed on the New
Zealand Stock Exchange, on 4th December 2012. Mr.
U served as an independent director of GRP Limited, a
company listed on the Singapore Exchnage Securities
Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”), from 7th June 2004 to
31st December 2012 and served as an independent
director of Miyoshi Precision Limited, a company listed
on the SGX-ST, from 13th February 2004 to 27th
December 2013.

Mr. Tsang Wai Yip, aged 45, joined the Company as
the Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary in
November 2009 and was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company in August 2012. In February
2018, Mr. Tsang has been re-designated as a non-
executive Director and has resigned as the Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the
Company.

Mr. Tsang began his career with PricewaterhouseCoopers
as an auditor. He held finance roles at a number of
companies listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Tsang currently
is the chief financial officer of Agria Corporation, a
company listed on the New York Stock Exchange, and
a director of PGG Wrightson Limited, a company listed
on the New Zealand Stock Exchange.

Mr. Tsang holds a bachelor's degree with honours
in accountancy and is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a
fellow member of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr.
Tsang has over 20 years of experience in auditing,
accounting, investor relations and corporate finance,
including initial public offering, restructuring and merger
and acquisition transactions.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson, aged 46, was
appointed as Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company in February 2009. He is also the
Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr.
Wong is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and member of Australia
CPA and Australasian Institute of Banking and Finance.
He holds a master of commerce degree, specializing
in banking and finance from the University of New
South Wales. With more than 20 years of experience
in PricewaterhouseCoopers and Ernst and Young, Mr.
Wong specializes in the area of auditing banks and
listed companies. Mr. Wong is an independent non-
executive director of PanAsialum Holdings Company
Limited, a company listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Chen Wei Wen, aged 45, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in April 2010. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Chen holds a
Bachelor of Business (Accounting) from Monash
University, Australia. Mr. Chen worked as a general
manager of Guangzhou Futian Trading Company
Lid (BMTERESHERADA) from 1997 to 2005.
Since November 2004, Mr. Chen was appointed as
chief operating officer of Guangzhou Kanxin Polymer
Technology Co., Ltd(BMMELESFEHRBERA
A]) which is an affiliated company of Guangzhou Futian
Trading Company Ltd(EMTEARESERAF).
Mr. Chen was also appointed as director and general
manager of Fuda Enterprises Limited (& MZEd2ARE
‘AA]) since February 1998.
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EEREREBARCEE

Ms. Yang Li, aged 42, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in January
2011. She is also the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Ms. Yang holds a
master degree in Law from Renmin University of
China, specializing in philosophy, moral and political
education. From July 1993 to May 2005, Ms. Yang
taught in Chinese People’s Public Security University
as assistant lecturer, lecturer and associate professor.
From June 2005 to November 2006, Ms. Yang acted
as deputy general manager of the administration
and management department of China Exhibition
Investment and Development Corporation Ltd.
From December 2006 to August 2011, she acted
as manager, supervisor and general manager of the
administration department of &FRER (Ib ) Dk
ZIHBMRAR. Ms. Yang has extensive experience
in corporate operation, human resources and
administration and management.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Churk Kai, aged 60, joined the Group in
1978 and is the Managing Director of the pipe trading
subsidiary, Bun Kee (International) Limited. With over
36 years of experience in the trading of pipes, fittings
and other related accessories, he is responsible for the
development and supervision of the sales department.
Mr. Chan is an associate member of the Institute
of Plumbing and Heating Engineering (U.K.), Asian
Institute of Intelligent Buildings and the Hong Kong
Association of Energy Engineers. He is also a member
of Lions Club.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Cheng Siu Kwan, aged 44, joined the Company
as the Financial Controller in December 2012 and
has been appointed as the Company Secretary of
the Company in February 2013. Mr. Cheng is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Cheng held various finance positions at
a number of companies listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and has over 19 vyears of
experience in auditing, finance and accounting.

Ms. Chan Yuk Fan, aged 50, joined the Group in
1982 and is the Sales Director of the pipe trading
subsidiary, Bun Kee (International) Limited. Ms. Chan
is mainly responsible for the Group’s sales operations
including wholesale division, Hong Kong and Macau
retail shops and new product development. She
is also responsible for managing staff of the sales
and marketing team, and coordinating procurement
management and operations of the Group. Ms. Chan
has over 32 years of experience in the selling of pipes,
fittings and other related accessories.

Mr. Lai Kui Chung, aged 56, joined the Group in
1979 and is the Warehouse Director of the pipe
trading subsidiary, Bun Kee (International) Limited.
Mr. Lai is responsible for the warehouse and
transportation activities of the Group. He has over 34
years of experience in supervising warehouse and
transportation operations. Mr. Lai holds a Certificate in
Store Supervision from a technical institute.

Mr. Ku Chun Ming, aged 48, joined the Group in
1993 and is the Associate Sales Director of the pipe
trading subsidiary, Bun Kee (International) Limited.
Mr. Ku has over 27 years of experience in sales and
marketing activities. He is responsible for the sales
and promotion activities including the exhibitions and
seminars.
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Corporate Governance Report
EEXEREE

China Pipe Group Limited (the “Company”) is
committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance. The board of directors of the Company
(the “Board”) and management maintain and enhance
the policies and practices of the Company on a timely,
transparent, effective and reasonable manner, so as
to maintain good, solid and reasonable corporate
governance. The Company believes that good
corporate governance is not only in the interest of
shareholders and investors but also in the interest of
the Company. The Company will continue to raise the
standard to formalize the best practice of corporate
governance as far as we could.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the code provisions
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
as stated in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year
ended 31st December 2013.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rule (the
“Model Code”). Having made specific enquiry with the
directors of the Company (“Directors”), all Directors
confirmed that they have fully complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code during
the year ended 31st December 2013.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board comprises eight Directors, including three
executive Directors, Mr. Lai Guanglin acting as the
Chairman of the Company, Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng acting
as Chief Executive Officer of the Company and Mr. Lai
Fulin; two non-executive Directors, Mr. U Kean Seng
and Mr. Tsang Wai Yip; and three independent non-
executive Directors, Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson,
Mr. Chen Wei Wen and Ms. Yang Li, one of whom
namely, Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson has appropriate
professional accounting experience and expertise.
Biographical details of the Directors are set out in
the section headed “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT” of this
Annual Report.

On 15th February 2013, Mr. Tsang Wai Yip was re-
designated from an executive Director to a non-
executive Director.

Throughout the year, the Board has at least one-third in
number of its members comprising independent non-
executive Directors under Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules.

Each of the non-executive Directors (including the
independent non-executive Directors) has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company and
appointed for a term of one year. All Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the bye-laws of the Company.

Corporate Governance Report
EEERIEE

EEE
HARAR

EEQREGM/\BESHENK  BE-EHTES  Lai
Guanglin e & (BARRARER) « ILELRAE (BARAF
BRENTE) MBREBLE  MAFERNTESRERL
ERBEELRE UR=ZZBBNIFERTES : FUE
LA BREXEERBHZL  ERENEEEES
BENEESHTLERREMNG  BUNESHEARE
BFEHHRATHRZ [ EERRRERBABZEEIN -

R-Z—=F_A+hHA BEEXEEHHTESTE
AERIFRITES -

REER - RIBETRABI0AZHEEEGHERD
=D —BEMFMITESAMN ©

BEIFNTES(BRBYIFNTES) YELRRQFR]
VURH—FERNRER - MIBESTARBEARAZ
REAAARERARRRRBFAS LWERERE
BEL -

—ZT—=FF3 Annual Report 2013

21



22

Corporate Governance Report
EEXELIEE

Each of the independent non-executive Directors
has made an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all the independent non-
executive Directors meet the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers
that they are independent.

To the best knowledge of the Company, except that
Mr. Lai Guanglin is the elder brother of Mr. Lai Fulin,
there is no relationship (including financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship) among
members of the Board.

The Board has balance of skills, knowledge and
experience appropriate for the requirements of
the business and to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy. The Board membership is covered
by professionally qualified and widely experienced
personnel to bring in valuable contributions and
different professional advices and consultancy for
development of the Company. All Directors have
separate and independent access to the advice
and services of the senior management and the
company secretary with a view to ensuring the board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed. The principal functions of the Board are to
supervise the management of the business and affairs;
to approve the strategic plans, investment and funding
decision; to review the Group’s financial performance
and operating initiatives.
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The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for
formulating overall strategy and polices, monitoring and
controlling the performance of the Group. In addition
to its overall supervisory role, the Board also retains
specific responsibilities such as approving financial
accounts, approving annual budget, recommending
dividend payments, approving policies relating to the
Board’s compliance, etc. whilst managing the Group’s
day-to-day operations is the responsibility of the
management of the Group (the “Management”) such as
implementing internal control, business strategies and
plans set by the Board, etc.. When the Board delegates
certain aspects of its management and administration
functions to the Management, it has given clear
directions as to the powers of the Management.

Continuous Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director has received
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction
on appointment so as to ensure that he/she has
appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and that he/she is fully aware
of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules, legal
and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the code provision A.6.5 of the Code on Directors’
training. During the Year, all Directors have participated
in continuous professional development by attending
seminars and/or reading materials on the following
topics to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
and provided a record of training to the Company.
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EREIRSE

Name of Directors

Mr. Lai Guanglin

Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng

Mr. Lai Fulin

Mr. U Kean Seng

Mr. Tsang Wai Yip

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson
Mr. Chen Wei Wen

Ms. Yang Li

Note:

C: Corporate Governance

F: Finance and Accounting

L: Listing Rules Updates

R: Other Relevant Regulatory Updates

Topics on training covered (Note)
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ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The position of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company are held by separate
individuals. The role of the Chairman is separated from
that of the Chief Executive Officer. Such division of
responsibilities helps to reinforce their independence
and accountability.

The Chairman of the Company, Mr. Lai Guanglin,
takes up the role of providing leadership for the Board
and ensures that the Board works effectively and
discharges its responsibility properly. With the support
of executive Directors and the Company Secretary, the
Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly
briefed on issues arising at board meetings and receive
adequate and reliable information in a timely manner.
Mr. Lai also ensures that good corporate governance
practice is in force from time to time, and all key issues
are discussed by the Board in a timely manner.
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The Chief Executive Officer of the Company, Mr. Yu
Ben Ansheng, is responsible for managing overall
daily operations of the Group, the implementation of
the Group’s development strategies and plans and
to perform other responsibilities as assigned by the
Board.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly, and at least four times a
year, additional meetings are convened when deemed
necessary by the Board. Board members are provided
with complete, adequate and timely information to
allow the Directors to fulfill their duties properly. In
addition, Directors have full access to information
on the Group and independent professional advice
whenever deemed necessary by the Directors.

The Board held seven meetings during the year ended
31st December 2013. Due notice and board papers
were given to all Directors prior to the board meetings
in accordance with the Code.

In addition, the Chairman and non-executive Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors)
meet at least once every year without the presence of
executive Directors.

Meetings held in 2013 by the Board, the Board
Committees and the Shareholders respectively

Details of the Directors’ attendance at Board meetings,
Board committee meetings and general meeting
respectively held in 2013 are set out as below:
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N F-—- SRV 2N - -
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Attended/Eligible to attend
HERS AERHERE
Audit Nomination Remuneration Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
EFg FRERE REERE FH=RE BRBE
-1 ] -t ] -4 ] -4 ] N |
Number of Meetings Held ERETRY 7 3 2 4 1
Executive Directors BiTE=R
Mr. Lai Guanglin Lai Guanglin 5t & 7 - 2/2 4/4 11
Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng MRERE 777 - - - 11
Mr. Lai Fulin FEm A 777 - - - 0/1
Non-executive Directors FRTES
Mr. U Kean Seng REKLE 77 3/3 - - il
Mr. Tsang Wai Yip BREELLE /7 - - - -
Independent BAFRITES
Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wison — ELAELAE 77 3/3 - - 1/1
Mr. Chen Wei Wen BREXEE 777 3/3 2/2 4/4 11
Ms. Yang Li Bzt 77 - 2/2 4/4 il
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BOARD COMMITTEES

A number of Board committees, including audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee, have been established by the Board to
strengthen its functions and to enhance its expertise.
All committees have been formed with specific
written terms of reference which deals clearly with the
respective committees’ authorities and duties.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration
Committee comprises three members including one
executive Director, namely Mr. Lai Guanglin and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen
Wei Wen and Ms. Yang Li. It is chaired by Ms. Yang Li.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are as follows:

(@ To make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all directors
and senior management remuneration and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) To review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

() To make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management, including
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments (including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment); and

(d)  To make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive directors.
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The remuneration package of executive Directors
is determined by reference to their duties and
responsibilities, experience and the prevailing market
conditions. The remuneration package of individual
executive Directors includes salary, discretionary bonus
and share based payment. Details of the Directors’ fee
and other emoluments of the Directors of the Company
are set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the
model that it will review the proposals made by
the management on the remuneration of executive
Directors and senior management, and make
recommendations to the Board. The Board will have
final authority to approve the recommendations made
by the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee held four meetings
during 2013, the following major matters were reviewed
and discussed in the meetings and recommended to
the Board for approval:

° reviewing the remuneration policy and
remuneration packages of all Directors and senior
management of the Company;

o considering the bonus arrangement and
distribution of incentive allowance to the Directors
and senior management of the Company; and

° reviewing the new service contracts entered

into between the Company and non-executive
Directors.
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Nomination Committee

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprises three members including one executive
Director, namely Mr. Lai Guanglin and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Wei Wen
and Ms. Yang Li. It is chaired by Mr. Lai Guanglin, the
Chairman of the Board.

In August 2013, the Company adopted the Board
Diversity Policy in accordance with the requirement set
out in the code provision of the Code. Such policy sets
out the approach to achieve diversity on Board.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at
the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. Selection of candidates will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination
Committee are as follows:

(@ To review the structure, size and composition
(board diversity has been considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service) of the Board
at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;
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(b) To identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection
of, individuals nominated for directorships.
All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board;

(c) To review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, and disclose the Board Diversity
Policy or its summary in the corporate
governance report of the Company including
the measurable objectives set for implementing
the Board Diversity Policy and progress made
towards achieving these measurable objectives;

(d)  To assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors; and

(e) make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors in particular the
chairman and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during
2013, the following major issues were reviewed and
discussed in the meetings:

° reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board;

° evaluating and making recommendation as to the
qualification and experience of the directors who
were subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the 2013 annual general meeting; and

° making recommendation to the Board for the re-
designation of a Director of the Company.
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Audit Committee

As at the date of this report, Audit Committee consists
of two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson and Mr. Chen Wei Wen,
and a non-executive Director, namely Mr. U Kean
Seng. It is chaired by Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson
who has the appropriate professional qualifications,
accounting and financial management expertise.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee
are as follows:

(@  To make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor,
and any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

(b)  To monitor integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and to review significant financial
reporting judgements contained in them;

() To review the Company’s financial controls,
internal control and risk management systems;
and

(d) To discuss the internal control system with
management to ensure that management has
performed its duty to have an effective internal
control system.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during 2013
and the following major matters were reviewed and
discussed in the meetings:

° reviewing the annual results of 2012 and
the interim results of 2013 and making
recommendation to the Board for approval;
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° making recommendation on the re-appointment
of the auditor;

° reviewing the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function and their training programme and related
budget;

° reviewing the internal control and risk
management system;

° approving the auditor's fees for audit of 2013
financial statements; and

° discussing the audit service plan of 2013.
Corporate Governance Functions

The Board has adopted the written terms of reference
on corporate governance functions in March 2012
SO as to assist the Board performing corporate
governance functions. The terms of reference of the
Board in respect of corporate governance functions are
summarized as follows:

(@ To develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance;

(b) To review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management;

(c) To review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices to ensure compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements;

(d) To develop, review and monitor the code

of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and
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(e) To review the Company’s compliance with
the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules and its disclosure requirements in the
Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuing professional development of Directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of the Model Code,
and the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report. In
addition, the Board has approved the adoption of the
Board Diversity Policy and adopted the revised terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees charged by the auditor generally depends on
the scope and volume of the auditor’s work. For the
year ended 31st December 2013, the remuneration to
the auditor of the Company in respect of audit services
was HK$990,000 and fees related to taxation services
and other non-audit services amount to HK$77,000
and HK$100,000 respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment of annual and
interim reports, inside information announcements and
other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and
other regulatory requirements. The senior management
provides such explanation and information to the
Board so as to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the financial information and position of
the Company.

Corporate Governance Report
EEERIEE

@ WEAREESTEWRAME14CKEEEETHD
P EEE RS )N TE -

RAFE BEFRCRAARFZEEERABRLE
B UAREENSRERASZBIMSEEXE
B ARBEEBTERMNEERECHRRER &
STIRESTAl - ARAR R BT REERT RNEE
ERMEZHERR - I BEFSEHETRNE
EENBETEBRMRATIREZ B 2 KEBRTH
REEE -

43 B4 Bif 57 B

BRHAMBENEA MR TETIEERBEEME - 8
E-T—ZHF+-A=Z+—BHULEFE  RAREZXE
Bl AT A H 2812 BR 7% B A /5 990,000 8 7T + A KR FE 7% F1
H i IER RIS E A S B A 77,0007 7T & 100,000 7%
7T e

EEREBEZMBERERE

i% BERE—H¥E - 5%ME%HHZ¢$&&EPHH$&

ABBEEREARZ EMRREBEERE
*Zﬁfﬂﬂﬂfg =4 ﬁf@)\%ﬁﬁl‘ﬂ%%@ktﬁﬁi
REF  BESGENYARRB ZHBEER KA TE
TTAREZFE -

—ZT—=FF3 Annual Report 2013

33



34

Corporate Governance Report
EEXEREE

The Directors acknowledge the responsibilities for
preparing the accounts of the Company.

The responsibilities of the auditor of the Company with
respect to the financial statements of the Group is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 55 to
57.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries,
consider that the Company has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate
system of internal controls within the Group and for
reviewing their effectiveness. The system of internal
controls is designed to facilitate effective and efficient
operations, to safeguard assets and to ensure
the quality of internal and external reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. It is
also designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that material misstatement or loss can be
avoided, and to manage and minimize risks of failure in
operation systems.

The Board engaged a professional consulting
firm to perform internal control review to assess
the effectiveness of the financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions of
the Company and the Group’s major subsidiaries on a
rotation basis.
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At the meeting of the Audit Committee held on
14th March 2014, the professional consulting firm
reported their review work for the year ended 31st
December 2013 performed in accordance with the
detailed risk-based internal control review plan which
was approved by the Audit Committee. The Board,
through the Audit Committee, has conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
systems for the year ended 31st December 2013. The
Audit Committee members, together with the senior
management, have also reviewed, considered and
discussed all findings relating to the internal control
systems and recommendations for improvement.

The Audit Committee also reviewed and was satisfied
with the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting function.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Mr. Cheng
Siu Kwan, who is also the Financial Controller of
the Company. Mr. Cheng is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He fulfills the requirement under Rules
3.28 and 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

The Company Secretary is responsible for providing
secretarial services to the Board and ensuring the
operation of the Company is properly complied with
Hong Kong listed companies’ regulatory requirements
as well as enhancing its corporate governance
standards.
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All Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary with a view to ensuring
that board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. Company Secretary is also
the secretary of each of Board committees. Minutes of
Board meetings and meetings of all Board committees
are kept by the Company Secretary and are available
for inspection by the Directors at all times.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Right to convene special general meeting

Pursuant to Section 74(1) of the Bermuda Companies
Act and the bye-law 62 of the Bye-Laws of the
Company, the shareholder(s) of the Company holding
at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
as at the date of the deposit carries the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company may request the
Board to convene a special general meeting.

The requisition must state the purposes of the
meeting, and must be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited at the registered office of the Company and
its head office and principal place of business in Hong
Kong for the attention of Company Secretary and may
consist of several documents in like form each signed
by one or more requisitionists.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from
the date of the deposit of the requisition proceed
duly to convene a meeting, the requisitionists, or any
of them representing more than one half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene
a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the said
date.
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Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s share registrar. Other
shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to the head
office and principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong as set out in the “CORPORATE
INFORMATION” section of this Annual Report for the
attention of Company Secretary.

Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to Sections 79(1) and 79(2) of the Bermuda
Companies Act, on the requisition in writing of either (i)
any number of members of the Company representing
not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of
all the members having at the date of the requisition
a right to vote at the meeting to which the requisition
relates; or (i) not less than one hundred members, the
Company shall, at the expense of the requisitionists
unless the Company otherwise resolves:

(@ to give to members of the Company entitled to
receive notice of the next annual general meeting
notice of any resolution which may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting;

(b) to circulate to shareholders entitled to have
notice of any general meeting sent to them any
statement of not more than one thousand words
with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt
with at that meeting.
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A copy or copies of requisition signed by all
requisitionists shall be deposited, with a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses
in giving notice of the proposed resolution or circulating
any necessary statement, at the registered office of
the Company and its head office and principal place of
business in Hong Kong in the case of:

(i) a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not
less than six weeks before the meeting; and

(i) any other requisition, not less than one week
before the meeting.

The Company will verify the requisition and upon
confirming that the requisition is proper and in order,
the Board will proceed with the necessary procedures.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board is obliged to provide regular, effective
and fair communication with the shareholders and
the investors of the Company. Latest information is
conveyed to the Shareholders and the investors of the
Company on a timely basis.

A Shareholder Communication Policy (the “Policy”) was
adopted by the Company in March 2012. The Policy
aims to set out the provisions with the objective of
ensuring that the latest information of the Company is
conveyed to the Shareholders and investors on a timely
basis. The Company uses a range of communication
tools to ensure the Shareholders and the investors are
kept well informed of key business imperatives.
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Disclosure of Information

Information shall be communicated to Shareholders
and the investors mainly through the Company’s
financial reports (interim and annual reports), annual
general meetings and other general meetings that may
be convened, as well as by making available all the
disclosures submitted to The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) and
its corporate communications and other corporate
publications on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s
website and the Company’s website.

General Meetings

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general
meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at
meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable to
attend the meetings. Shareholders’ views on matters
that affect the Company are welcome by the Board at
shareholders’ meetings. Shareholders of the Company
are notified of shareholders’ meetings through notices
and reports or circulars sent to them. Each item
of special business in the notice of the meeting is
accompanied, where appropriate, by an explanation
for the proposed resolution. A separate resolution is
proposed by the chairman of the meetings in respect
of each separate issue, including the re-election of
Directors.

The Chairman of the Board and Chairmen of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee or failing him, his duly appointed delegate,
are available at the annual general meeting to answer
questions with regard to the work of these committees.
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Voting by Poll

Save as provided under the Listing Rules, resolutions
put to vote at the general meetings of the Company
(other than procedural matters) are taken by poll.
Procedures regarding the conduct of the poll are
explained to the shareholders at the commencement of
each general meeting, and questions from shareholders
regarding the voting procedures are answered. The poll
results are posted on the respective websites of the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the
same day of the poll.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company maintains a website
www.chinapipegroup.com where information and
updates on the list of Directors and their roles and
functions, constitutional documents, terms of reference
of the Board committees, procedures for shareholders
to propose a person for election as a director,
announcements, circulars and reports, etc. released to
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and other information
are posted. Information on the Company’s website will

be updated from time to time.

A dedicated email address ir@chinapipegroup.com for
investor enquiry is set out in the “Contact Us” section
on the Company’s website.

There was no significant change in the Company’s

constitutional documents during the year ended 31st
December 2013.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have
pleasure in presenting their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31st
December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are
set out in Note 30 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segments is set out in Note 5 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st
December 2013 are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 58.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31st December 2013.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 140.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
and of the Company during the year are set out in Note
22 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the distributable reserves of the Company as
at 31st December 2013 are set out in Note 22 to the
financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in properties, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 14 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the
Company are set out in Note 21 to the financial
statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31st
December 2013 are set out in Note 23 to the financial
statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares
during the year. Neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the
Company’s shares during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
24th June 2004, a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
of the Company was approved by shareholders of the
Company. Relevant information relating to the Scheme
is set out as follows:

(@) Purpose of the Scheme
The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the

Company with a flexible means of giving incentive
and/or rewarding the participants.
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(b)

(©)

Participants of the Scheme

The Board may offer to grant options to the
participants which means (i) any Director
(including any executive director, non-executive
director or independent non-executive director)
of any member of the Group; (i) any employee
(whether full-time or part-time) of any member of
the Group; (i) any consultant, adviser, supplier,
customer or sub-contractor of the Group; and (iv)
any other person whatsoever from time to time
determined by the Board as having contributed to
the development, growth or benefit of the Group.

Total number of shares available for issue
under the Scheme

The total number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of
the general meeting of the Company approving
the Scheme. The number of shares may be
refreshed by the approval of the shareholders
and the refreshed limit of the number of shares
must not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as the date of the approval of
the refreshed limit. The maximum number of
shares of the Company which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares available for issue
under the Scheme are 962,270,000 Shares,
representing approximately 7% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue as at
the date of this report.

(b)

()
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(d)

()

()

(9)

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Total number of shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each participant (including exercised
or outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares
in issue as at the date of grant.

Minimum period for options to be held

No minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised unless otherwise
specified in the relevant offer letter.

Period and payment on acceptance of options

Pursuant to the Scheme, HK$10 is payable by
the grantee to the Company on acceptance of
the option within 28 days from the date of grant
of the option.

Basis determining the subscription price

The subscription price of a share in respect of
any particular option granted under the Scheme
shall be a price determined by the Board and
notified to the participants and shall be at least
the highest of (a) the closing price of the shares
as stated in The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”)
daily quotation sheet on the date on which
the options are deemed to be granted and
accepted in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme (the “Commencement Date”), which
must be a business day; (b) the average closing
price of the shares as stated in the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the
five business days immediately preceding the
Commencement Date; and (c) the nominal value
of the shares.
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(h) Life of the Scheme (h) FrEIZE%%H
Subject to earlier termination by the Company at BARATINIREAS FeHESSIRERIEIN
general meeting or by the Board, the life of the A2 2ENERE _ZEENEA M HE (A
Scheme commenced from 24th June 2004, date HE)RE-_T—NFA=Z+=AAL -
of adoption, and will end on 23rd June 2014.
Details of options granted, exercised, lapsed, REFA - BIFFTEIRE ~ 1766 K80 FEk
cancelled and outstanding under the Scheme BARITERIBARE BT ¢
during the year are as follows:
Movement during the year
Fhen
Held as at Held as at
Exercise  1st January 31st December
Price 2013 2013
HK$ RZZ-ZF Grantedand RIZ-=
Name of Directors Date of grant fi#E -A-H accepted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled T=B=+-8
ESit4 Eofl:E &7 5 CRHLER BT E&N 2524} 2]
Lai Fulin B fvoe 177 3/12/2009 0.071 50,000,000 - - - - 50,000,000
U Kean Seng RER Mo 20 3/12/2009 0.071 30,000,000 - - - - 30,000,000
Toang Wai Yip &g 5 tee 720 3/12/2009 0071 100,000,000 - - - - 100,000,000
Wong Yee Shuen, Wison & A5 e 97 3/12/2009 0.071 10,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000
Chen Wei Wen B 3 Moe222 5/6/2010 0.083 10,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000
Yang Li #5] o9 8/6/2011 0.0392 10,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000
210,000,000 - - - - 210,000,000
Employees [E 5 foes 44144 3/12/2009 0071 155,000,000 - - - - 155,000,000
Employes [ 8 Aue272 5/6/2010 0.083 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000
371,000,000 - - - - 371,000,000
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Notes:

Detai
Sche

The options granted to these grantees are vested in
stages and be exercised in the following manner:

Maximum percentage of options exercisable
AT R ERESE DL

20%
20%
20%
20%
20%

The options granted to these grantees are vested in

stages and be exercised in the following manner:

Maximum percentage of options exercisable
AT ERESRS A DL

20%
20%
20%
20%
20%

The options granted to this grantee are vested in stages

and be exercised in the following manner:

Maximum percentage of options exercisable
AT R ERm B AL

20%
20%
20%
20%
20%

Vesting of options granted to certain employees is
subject to achievement of profit target.

Is of the fair value of options granted under the
me during the year ended 31st December 2013

and the accounting policy adopted for the options are

set o

ut in Note 8 and Note 2 to the financial statements

respectively.
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Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the
options

T RRRBREE Dt 2 IR

3/6/2010 — 2/12/2019
3/6/2011 - 2/12/2019
3/6/2012 — 2/12/2019
3/6/2013 — 2/12/2019
3/6/2014 — 2/12/2019

EFRSREANBRAEDEARE  TRATHR
7

Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the
options

TR Ot 2 IR

5/11/2010 - 4/5/2020
5/11/2011 - 4/5/2020
5/11/2012 - 4/5/2020
5/11/2013 — 4/5/2020
5/11/2014 - 4/5/2020

BTZARANBRESOBRRE - R THRT
&

Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the
options

TR Dt IR

8/12/2011 - 7/6/2021
8/12/2012 - 7/6/2021
8/12/2013 - 7/6/2021
8/12/2014 - 7/6/2021
8/12/2015 - 7/6/2021
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Apart from the share option scheme of the Company,
at no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lai Guanglin (Chairman)
Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lai Fulin

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. U Kean Seng
Mr. Tsang Wai Yip (e !

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson
Mr. Chen Wei Wen
Ms. Yang Li

Note:

1. On 15th February 2013, Mr. Tsang Wai Yip was re-
designated from an executive Director to a non-
executive Director.
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In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws of the
Company, Mr. Lai Guanglin, Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng and
Mr. Chen Wei Wen will retire from office by rotation and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each independent
non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his/
her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and the Company considers that all of them are
independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior
management are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company has entered into any service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which
is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business to which the Company, its
subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and
in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Significant related party transactions entered by the
Group during the year ended 31st December 2013 are
disclosed in Note 28 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors and their respective associates
has an interest in any business which competes or
may compete with the business in which the Group
engaged.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

The interests of the directors in the share options of
the Company are separately disclosed in the section
headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME” above.

As at 31st December 2013, the interests and short
positions of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were
set out below:
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Long positions in the shares and underlying share
of the Company

Name of Directors Capacity

ExgB 1]

Lai Guanglin Interest of controlled corporation
Rt LB R

Yu Ben Ansheng Beneficial owner/Interest

AIRAE of controlled corporation
BaRlA A/ RN AR

Notes:

1. These shares are held by Singapore Zhongxin

Investment Company Limited, which is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Lai Guanglin, an executive
Director and the Chairman of the Company.
Accordingly, Mr. Lai is deemed to be interested in such
shares under the SFO.

2. These shares are held by King Jade Holdings Limited,
which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Yu Ben
Ansheng, an executive Director and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Yu is deemed
to be interested in such shares under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed
“‘SHARE OPTION SCHEME” above, as at 31st
December 2013, none of the Directors or chief
executive or their respective associates had any
interests or short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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percentage of
Personal Corporate shares in issue
Interests Interests Total  {HEH{THIR
EA#ER EEER st #Bhast
- 7,705,521,207  7,705,521,207 57.79%
(Note 1 it 1)
30,000,000  1,460,000,000  1,490,000,000 11.18%
(Note 2 fifit 2)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December 2013, the interests or short
positions of the following persons or corporations,
other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

Long position in share and underlying share of the
Company

Name of shareholders Capacity

BRER 54

Singapore Zhongxin Investment
Company Limited Mete 74 7

Li Juan Z= 4§ (Note 2 it 2)

King Jade Holdings Limited
(Note 3 fifit 3)

Zhang Lin (Note 4 HizF 4)

Notes:

1. Singapore Zhongxin Investment Company Limited is
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Lai Guanglin, an
executive Director and the Chairman of the Company.
Accordingly, Mr. Lai is deemed to be interested in such
shares under the SFO.

2. Ms. Li Juan, the spouse of Mr. Lai Guanglin, is also
deemed to be interested in Mr. Lai’s interest in the
Company under the SFO.

Beneficial owner BB A

Interest of spouse At B 25

Beneficial owner Bz B A

Interest of spouse At (B #E2%
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1,490,000,000 11.18%
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3. King Jade Holdings Limited is wholly and beneficially
owned by Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng, an executive Director
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
Accordingly, Mr. Yu is deemed to be interested in such
shares under the SFO.

4. Ms. Zhang Lin, the spouse of Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng, is
also deemed to be interested in Mr. Yu’s interest in the
Company under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2013,
the Company had not been notified by any persons or
corporations, other than the Directors or chief executive
of the Company, who had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Group were entered into or existed
during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the
year attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

Purchases
—the largest supplier 20.95%
— five largest suppliers combined 51.75%
Sales
— the largest customer 8.62%
— five largest customers combined 24.74%

None of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
had an interest in the major suppliers or customers

noted above.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEZ£EEERLQF

3. King Jade Holdings Limited JhF &I &4 54 (AR E] 2
WITEEHRERWTE) 2EE=HA - Bt - BREE
HREEEG] - e EWIR AR ZERO P IEAER

4. BEES NS ES - Zhang Llniti(’ﬁ? EREZR
B) MR AR L ERARAR 2 Ex

BEXEBEEN RZF—=F+-_A=1+—B &
Aﬁﬂﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ&ﬁﬁ@)\iﬁiﬁi(T\’F]?EZF’AE
%%EJZI%??BU\E)ﬁﬁﬁ“ﬂﬂ%’ﬁiﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂé

MmIOX R MABRRIRIEE 7 K G 5P 5 336 (FH5 €
ARRABEFZELMA -

FRAAETISFES MAREZHMRERMERLS
B2 EABEERITRAEL -

FEEFRRMUER

AEEEZHEBEEFFAD MG I RERHEE
BT

IR
— A ERE 20.95%
— R RNEEEEET 51.75%
e
—mARF 8.62%
—hARKEFAER 24.74%

BREE  HMBATHEMRR (RESHAREAR
AIRAL% A LE)E T BHERXETFPHEELZ
ERCIEE F i



COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Details of the compliance with corporate governance
code of the Company are set out in the “CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REPORT” of this annual report.

DISCLOSURE OF THE CHANGES IN THE
INFORMATION OF THE DIRECTORS
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE
LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules,
changes in the information of the Directors of the
Company required to be disclosed in this report are as
follows:

1. On 22nd October 2013, Mr. Lai Guanglin, an
executive Director and the Chairman of the
Company has been appointed as the Chairman
of the board of directors of PGG Wrightson
Limited, a company listed on the New Zealand
Stock Exchange.

2. On 27th December 2013, Mr. U Kean Seng,
a non-executive Director of the Company, has
resigned as independent director of Miyoshi
Precision Limited, a company listed on the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.

Report of the Directors
EFEHEE

AETEREATANFBHRAFR [

R EHRAFE1351B()EATFHBEZESE
BHEE

BB EHRAE13.51B() FAREA T WEZ A AR
EZEMEBENT

1. RIZBE—Z=F1+AZ+=Z80 KXRAWMTESF
FfELai Guanglin L AEEZEAPGG Wrightson
Limited (—ARFIAMBELSR S L2 RF) 2
BEEERE -

2. RIZT—=F+ZA=++tR AREZERITE
BRI S A BT Miyoshi Precision Limited( =&
RBIARARE) (—ERFINEELFZSMERA
Al EM2 AR 2B EEHH -
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Report of the Directors
EFEEHEE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee consists of two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Yee Shuen,
Wilson and Mr. Chen Wei Wen, and a non-executive
Director, namely Mr. U Kean Seng.

By reference to “A Guide for the Formation of An Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, written terms of reference
which describe the authority and duties of the audit
committee were prepared and adopted by the Board of
the Company.

The annual results have been reviewed by the audit
committee of the Company.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public

float required under the Listing Rules as at the date of
this report.

AUDITORS
The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible,

offer themselves for re—appointment.

By Order of the Board

Lai Guanglin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21st March 2014

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEZ£EEERLQF
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To the Shareholders of China Pipe Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of China Pipe Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 58 to 139, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as
at 31st December 2013, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Independent Auditor’s Report
WA MENERE

-

BhEEREEARLFRE
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EERNGESMBERRARBHRE

EAREEARERBESEHAARBEHNEEH
TR 25 0 B B (A B () B TR AL A AR A B
BIR - NSO BRRELAETA TR
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Independent Auditor’s Report
WA MEDERE

Auditor’s Responsibility

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31st December 2013,
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21st March 2014

Independent Auditor’s Report
WA MENERE
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Consolidated Income Statement
Fekax

For the year ended 31st December 2013
HE-_Z-—=6+"A=1+—RAILFE

Revenue A

Cost of sales SHE A

Gross profit £

Other gains, net Hh e F8E

Selling and distribution costs SHE R A

General and administrative expenses —RRITEE A

Operating profit s A

Finance income TSI A

Finance costs WEER

Finance costs, net WIS ERFE

Profit before income tax 754 Al A

Tax expense THIEX

Profit for the year attributable to RATIREREE A
equity holders of the Company ZFE A

Earnings per share BARZER

Basic and diluted ERREE

Dividend % 2

The notes on pages 66 to 139 are an integral part of
these financial statements.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR

Note
B 5E

10

12

13

F66E 130 B 2T A EMImR 2B

2013 2012
—Z=—=5F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
504,143 455127
(384,718) (850,578)
119,425 104,549
2,568 4,579
(14,867) (18,337)
(86,002) (77,581)
21,124 18,210
863 745
(1,729) (2,001)
(866) (1,256)
20,258 16,954
(3,597) (8,254)
16,661 18,700
HK cent HK cent
&l AL
0.125 0.103
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
1 o



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
GeaZEkax

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:
Item that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

Actuarial gain on post-employment
benefit obligations, net of tax

Item that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Currency translation differences

Other comprehensive income for
the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax, attributable to equity holders
of the Company

The notes on pages 66 to 139 are an integral part of

these financial statements.

Note
B 5E
FERF
Hib 2 mEE
B G128 E A7
e E A 2 TH B

BEBR 12 B AETS Y
EEE - BRIEIE 22

B &R E# 7 AR E)

B EEC HE

B E =R 22
AEFEAZEWES
HBRFIE

RABIRIEREANFE
BREIR MG
EER AR

For the year ended 31st December 2013
HE_Z-—=6+"A=1+—RHLFE

2013 2012
—E—=F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FA&TT
16,661 13,700
930 =

253 97

1,183 97
17,844 13,797

566 = 139 B Z M AUt FRTEME 2 BiEE 5 -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
MERERAER

As at 31st December 2013
R=F—=F+=-A=+—H

2013 2012
—E—=% T F
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5T FET FA&TT
ASSETS HE
Non-current assets ERBNEE
Property, plant and equipment Y%~ R MR 14 5,782 6,381
Rental deposits and other assets Mame R EMEE 18 5,776 6,416
11,558 12,797
Current assets MENEE
Inventories FE 17 157,563 174,856
Trade receivables =) e 18 117,886 99,124
Deposits, prepayments and e BARK
other receivables H fth fEUFRIE 18 28,668 27,667
Tax recoverable AUk B 518 40 =
Pledged bank deposits HEIRERITIE K 19 69,196 94,348
Cash and cash equivalents ReERAEEEY 20 107,039 26,889
480,392 422,884
Total assets HEE 491,950 435,681

The notes on pages 66 to 139 are an integral part of F66%E 130 B 2Kk B EH K 2 BB -
these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
MeERERAER

As at 31st December 2013
R=F—=%+-A=+—H

EQUITY

Equity holders
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Other non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Taxation payable
Borrowings

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

On behalf of the Board

Lai Guanglin
Director 2%

The notes on pages 66 to 139 are an integral part of

these financial statements.

FREBAR
EEFIBRRE
HibIERBAE

mERR

B 5 N A MR FIR

FEFITEIR
fEE

#AR

HESRAR

RENRERH

HRERTDAR

RREEE

Yu Ben Ansheng i &4

Director 2%

Note
B 5E

21
22

24

23

2013 2012
—E—=% —F——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE&T FABT
26,665 26,665
304,563 285,961
331,228 312,626
289 44
2,687 3,619
2,976 3,663
59,656 51,246
1,329 484
96,761 67,662
157,746 119,392
160,722 123,055
491,950 435,681
322,646 303,492
334,204 316,289

F66E 130 B 2T A EMIEHRERZ

RS -
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Statement of Financial Position

MHERRAE
As at 31st December 2013
R-F—=%+-RA=1+—H

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets

Prepayments and other receivables
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY
Equity holders
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Other payables

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Net current assets/(liabilities)

Total assets less current liabilities

On behalf of the Board

Lai Guanglin
Director 2%

The notes on pages 66 to 139 are an integral part of

these financial statements.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR

Note
BisE

uE

SERENEE

Y%~ BE MR E 14
B A FIRE 15

mENEE

AR REMEKRIE 18
FE BT /B A B 5RIE 15
RERREEEY 20

HEE

g2

BEREA

(RN 21
(e 22
Bigs

R

mE AR

H At FEAS IR 25
ANL R PNCIE/ S 15

#AR

HESRAR

RBRE (AR BHE

HEERRDRAR

RREEE

Yu Ben Ansheng iR &
Director £%

2013 2012
—Zz—=F —T——fF
HK$°000 HK$’000
THT FHT
41 109
89,960 89,674
90,001 89,783
211 1,237
22,286 15,441
247 258
22,744 16,936
112,745 106,719
26,665 26,665
68,631 (20,008)
95,296 6,657
1,696 1,434
15,753 98,628
17,449 100,062
112,745 106,719
5,295 (83,126)
95,296 6,657

5566 £ 139 B Z M Rt S A 2 BB -



At 1st January 2012

Profit for the year
Qther comprehensive income:
Currency translation differences

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners;
Share based payment

At 31st December 2012

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GelEEDE

For the year ended 31st December 2013
HE_Z-—=6+"A=1+—RHLFE

Share based
Share  Share  Capl  Merger

(<)
&
=
3
=

Exchange  payment  Refained
captal premum  reSeve  reSeve  feSeve  resenve  resenve  eamings Total
Wi
ARt
RE BhEE AARE offtéh ichk EXRE MYER REEM 48
HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HKSO00O HKB'000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$000  HK$000
Thn T Thér TEr TEr TEr TR TEr  TEn

W-5-—%5-f-A %665 126618 34115 3700 4 1916 684 97766 297467
EEEH - - - - - - - 13700 13700
Hfp2 ks

EHhEEE - - - - - o7 - - o
FERANGEE - - - - - o7 - 13700 13797
BEEAIRS:

Wk EERH - - - - - - 13 - 13D
W_F-_F+-A=1-A 26665 126618 34115 3700 2 2013 80% 111465  3126%

The notes on pages 66 to 139 are an integral part of £ 66 E 130 B 7 HisE At EF SRR 2 B2 -
these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
SeEREDX

For the year ended 31st December 2013
HE-_Z-—=6+"A=1+—RAILFE

At 1st January 2013

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income:
Actuarial gain on post-employment
benefit obligations, net of tax
Currency ranslation differences

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners:
Share hased payment

At 31t December 2013

R-E-=£-f-R

EREN
Ef2ENE

BRARNERORE S

R
KRUEEE

EREEbELE

RN
DROAERANR

NoF-FtoA=t-8

Share based
Share  Share  Capital  Merger Statutoy  Other Exchange payment Retained

capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve - reserve - reserve  reserve  eamings Total

URIhE

B
Bt RWER HAGR GHGE EERE EAEE ERER MBER REAN 0 &N
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$000
Ténm THR TRT TEnT TER TER TEnr TR TER  TEn
26,665 126618 34115 3700 p] - 203 8026 111465 312626
- - - - - - - - 16661 16,661
- - - - - 930 - - - 930
- - - - - - 253 - - 253
- - - - - 930 253 - 16661 17,844
- - - - - - - 758 - 758
2,665 126618 34115 3700 % 90 226 8784 128126 331,28

66 % 139 H 2 Mt Rt EMISHmE 2 BEBHD -

The notes on pages 66 to 139 are an integral part of

these financial statements.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR




Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations
Interest paid

Interest received

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Drawdown of borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Repayment of amount due
to a related company
Decrease/(Increase) in pledged
bank deposits

Net cash generated from/(used in)
financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents

Exchange differences

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
*T = iﬂﬁl)lbzi

For the year ended 31st December 2013
HE_Z-—=6+"A=1+—RHLFE

2013 2012
—E—-=5F T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FET FA&TT
EEREZHARE
SIS EE 2R $ 27 30,831 5,631
EAFLE (1,804) (1,917)
BEUFIE 863 745
BIEEE (2,691) (2,634)
L RENE IR & F R 27,199 1,825
REXEZHARE
BAYZE « BENE&E (1,536) (2,847)
LEYE  BE&

HABTEEIA 94 10
WEREFTRAIR & H5 (1,442) (2,837)
REEHzRaTE
IRAEE 319,651 278,080
BEEE (290,552) (280,343)
EEEMN— %

EapCRNETEN - (876)
?EET%ETTT?W\

D, (35hn) 25,152 (23,898)
mEESELS

(FTA) IR FE 54,251 (27,037)
RERREEED

i, CRd) 558 80,008 (28,049)
PE 5 =58 142 69
FUIZHEER

HEeEEY 26,889 54,869
FRZHASR

HEeEEY 107,039 26,889

The notes on pages 66 to 139 are an integral part of F 662130 B 2 Wi At EMIEHmER 2 BB -

these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RME

General information

China Pipe Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are
principally engaged in trading of construction
materials, mainly pipes and fittings.

The Company is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda. The Company
has its primary listing on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Hong
Kong Stock Exchange”).

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated. These
financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 21st March
2014,

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in
the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and
under the historical cost convention.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR

—RE#H

PEEEEEARAT(ART ) REMHBAT
(678 [A%E ) TBHBREN (T ERRE
MEH) 285 -

Apdlp—REEREEMKL 2 BRAF

it =B Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda ° AR BlIEE B A
REGFBR AR BB ERIEE— L

N

m o

RIS, AR BREIE T2 - REHR
REOGHESSE_T —NF=A—+—BiE
FIg -

RUEERMHRR

TXHEIIRBEMFRAMBRERRAZTIES
TR - BRR BB - FIERAREREBEF
EF2HNERE -

RAMBHRRDREEEMEREER ([HEM
BIRELE E'JJ)&E”TEEX$2‘:%§%°



Notes to the Financial Statements

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with  HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed

in Note 4.

The following new standards, amendments to
standards and interpretation are mandatory for
the Group’s financial year beginning 1st January
2013. The adoption of these new standards,
amendments to standards and interpretation
does not have any significant impact to the
results and financial position of the Group.

2.

A5 R RO aE

RRNEERSTRE ()

RENATEMBREEANPBERE - AERE
RETHERNG G - ETFEEEEEER
AEEETBRNBETELAE - P RSEH
k= EERENBEAHGRAMBERRBEKR
RBMEENEE - SRME4RBE -

AEBER = "*:ﬁfﬂ*EIEiZ?éﬁ'ﬂﬁ’*E’Jﬁﬁ
BEFE BRERA T ORI R ~ (BET 2 2RI K
B BB EEEERMBIRRNEE ?&%“0

—ZT—=FF3% Annual Report 2013

67



68

Notes to the Financial Statements

M5B E

2. Basis of preparation and accounting

policies (cont’d)
HKFRS 1 Amendment

HKFRS 7 Amendment

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

Amendments to
HKFRS 10,11 and 12

HKAS 1 Amendment
HKAS 19 (2011)
HKAS 27 (2011)
HKAS 28 (2011)

HK(FRIC)-Int 20

HKFRSs Amendment

Government Loans

Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Consolidated Financial
Statements

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities

Fair Value Measurement

Consolidated Financial
Statements, Joint
Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities:
Transition Guidance

Presentation of Financial
Statements

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial
Statements
Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures
Stripping Costs in the
Production Phase of
a Surface Mine
Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

RRNEERSTRE ()
BAMBHREEE 15 HFER

fERTA
BRPBHERAET R
BRI

BRPBHERAE 105

BAPBRERAE 1R
BRPBHERAE 1257

BB RE LR E 135
B IS R AR
£10 1R 125
BETA

ARG EAE1REFTA

BEGHENF19%
(Z%—)
%5/’555. qu/ Al 27 5%

(Z%—)

B quﬁﬁlJ 28%F
(Z%F—)

B (B BRs
REZEE) 2B
F 205

BB BRELEANEETA

RE-HBHEEREE
rERaE

FRMTBERR

\
A

s o)
=
i
U\E

BRI EE

GAMSERE A2%
BRNEMEEL
BREEE  BEES

BBHERNZS
& & =7

B EIE
REFENS BHRE

WRFREER R
HORIBRACAR

—EENFRE

—T—EMEENE

The following new standards, amendments
to standards and interpretation have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year
beginning 1st January 2013 and have not been
early adopted by the Group. The Group has
commenced an assessment of the impact of
these new standards, amendments to standards
and interpretation but is not yet in a position
to state whether they would have a significant
impact on its results of operations and financial
position.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Basis of preparation and accounting

policies (cont’d)

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 14

HKAS 19 Amendment

HKAS 32 Amendment

HKAS 36 Amendment

HKAS 39 Amendment

HK(FRIC)-Int 21

Amendments to
HKFRS 7
and HKFRS 9
Amendments to
HKFRSs 10,12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)

HKFRSs Amendment

HKFRSs Amendment

Financial Instruments®
Regulatory Deferral
Accounts*
Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions?
Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities'
Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets'
Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting’
Levies'

Mandatory Effective Date
of HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures®

Investment Entities'

Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle?
Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle?

A5 R RO aE

WBREERFEBR (|)
ERMBREENSOR  SRMIAS
ERMREERSE 4R EEETES

BAELRIERE 195

RERMEHE :

BEIA EE#N2
BB ERE 325 HECHEERSRBE
BAIA
BB GRTAERE 365 FeREEL
BEIAR ANE SRR
BB GRTAERE 395 TETARER
BEIAR g AR
B (B BiRs HE
RELZEY) -RER
2158
B I R AR B ISR AR
FTHREIR F 95 A E
BAIA MABRBEEHRES
B ISR AR REZ®E
£10 12K

BEGERE 75
(ZF——)BiTA
ERIBRELAEITA

—T-EEE-Tf

M EBUE?
BABBHRERAEIIA “2—5E-%-=F
O

effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1st January 2014
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RME

2.

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(a)

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (cont’d)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded

as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest

measured is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the
case of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the income
statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in
a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating

decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the executive
directors of the Company that makes

strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RME

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(c) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial
statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions
or revaluation where items are
remeasured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the
income statement.

Group companies

The results and financial position of
all the Group entities (none of which
has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional
currency different from the
presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as
follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR =RME

2. Basis of preparation and accounting 2. RUBERSHBFR (&)
policies (cont’d)

(c) Foreign currency translation (cont’d) (c) ‘s (&)
(i) Group companies (cont’d) (i)  FEEINF](4E)

= assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

— income and expenses for
each income statement are
translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

= all resulting exchange
differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange
differences arising from the translation
of the net investment in foreign
operations, and of borrowings
and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to other
comprehensive income. When a
foreign operation is partially disposed
of or sold, exchange differences
that were recorded in equity are
recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of the gain
or loss on sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RME

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(c)

(d)

Foreign currency translation (cont’d)

(i) Group companies (cont’d)
Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate.
Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other

comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, comprising,
leasehold improvements, plant and
machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures
and motor vehicles are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly

attributable to the acquisition of the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the
asset’s carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance expenses
are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their costs to their
residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Plant, machinery and 3-10 years
equipment
Leasehold improvements 5 years or the
lease period,
if shorter
Office furniture, fixtures 3-5 years
and fittings
Office equipment 3-5 years
Computer equipment 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 3-10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are
determined by comparing proceeds with
carrying amount and are recognised within
‘Other gains-net’ in the consolidated
income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RME

2.

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(e)

(f)

Impairment of investments in
subsidiaries and non-financial assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life,
for example goodwill, are not subject
to amortisation and are at least tested
annually for impairment. Assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows
(i.e. CGUSs).
than goodwill that suffered an impairment

Non-financial assets other

are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Receipts or payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives
paid to lessees or received from the lessor)
are recognised as income or expenses in
the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(9)

(h)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. For the segment
of trading of pipes and fittings, cost is
determined using the first-in, first-out
(“FIFO”) method. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the assets is reduced through the use of
an allowance account, and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. When trade and other
receivables are uncollectible, they are
written off against the allowance account
for receivables. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
to the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RME

Basis of preparation and accounting

policies (cont’d)

i)

0

(k)

()

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in
hand and deposits held at call with banks.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective

interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after
the end of reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(m) Borrowings costs

()

General and specific borrowing costs
directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leaves
Employee entitlements to annual
leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end
of reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick
leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RME

2.

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

()

Employee benefits (cont’d)

(i)

(i)

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus
payments are recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result
of services rendered by employees
and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

Liabilities for bonus plans are
expected to be settled within twelve
months and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when
they are settled.

Pension obligations

Following the adoption of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
Scheme in December 2000, all
employees of the Group employed in
Hong Kong joined the MPF Scheme.
Under this scheme, employees
and the Group are required to
make contributions to the scheme
calculated at 5% of the individual
employee’s monthly basic salaries,
subject to a cap of HK$1,250 which
was increased from HK$1,000 with
effective from 1st June 2012. The
Group’s contributions to this scheme
are expensed when they are due.
The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(n) Employee benefits (cont’d)

(i)

Pension obligations (cont’d)

The Group’s employees in the
People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) are covered by various
government sponsored pension
plans. These government agencies
are responsible for the pension
liabilities to these employees. The
relevant group companies pay
monthly contributions to these
pension plans based on certain
percentages of the salaries, subject to
a certain ceiling.

Under these plans, the Group has
no legal or constructive obligation
to make further payments once the
required contributions have been
paid. Contributions to these plans are
expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RME

2.

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

()

Employee benefits (cont’d)

(iv)

Share-based payment

The Group operates equity-settled,
share-based compensation plan,
under which the entity receives
services from employees as
considerations for equity instruments
(options) of the Group. The fair value
of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting
conditions. Non-market performance
and service conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to vest.
The total
over the vesting period, which is the

expense is recognised
period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
At the end of each reporting period,
the entity revises its estimates of
the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-
market performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in the income statement with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the
company issues new shares. The
proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(0)

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised
in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge
is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the statement of financial
position date in the countries where
the Company and its subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid

to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RME

2.

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(0)

Current and deferred income tax
(cont’d)

(i)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised
using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using
tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by
the statement of financial position
date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, except
where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by
the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(0)

(9)

Current and deferred income tax

(cont’d)
(i) Offsetting
Deferred income tax assets and

liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to

settle the balances on a net basis.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the
Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation, and the
amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present
value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RME

2.

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(a)

(r)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable,
and represents amounts receivable for
goods and services supplied, stated net
of discounts,
taxes. The Group recognises revenue

returns and value added

when the amount of revenue can be
it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow

reliably measured; when

to the entity; and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical
results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the
specifics of each arrangement.

(i) Sales of goods are recognised when
goods are delivered to customers, the
customer has accepted the products
and collectibility of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

(i) Interest income is recognised on

a time-proportion basis using the

effective interest method.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in
the Group’s and the company’s financial
statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the company’s
where

shareholders or directors,

appropriate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Financial risk management

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety
of financial risks: market risk (including
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk),
credit and counterparty risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s financial risk management
focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance by actively managing debt
level and cash flow in order to maintain a
strong financial position and minimising
refinancing and liquidity risks by attaining
healthy debt
appropriate maturity profile and availability

repayment capacity,

of banking facilities.

(@  Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates principally
in Hong Kong and in Mainland
China and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from
various Currency exposures,
primarily with respect to the
United States dollars (“USD”),
(‘RMB”) and Euro.
Foreign exchange risk mainly

Renminbi

arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities, which are
denominated in a currency that
is not the functional currency
of the group entities. In order
to mitigate the foreign currency
risk, the Group has been closely
monitoring its foreign currency
exposure and requirements and
will arrange for any hedging
facilities if necessary.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR =RME

3. Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(@  Market risk (cont’d)

U)

Foreign exchange risk (cont’d)
As HKD is pegged against
USD, the Group is exposed
to limited exchange rate
fluctuation. As a result, the
exchange rate risk exposure
in respect of USD is not
significant. While for RMB
and Euro, the exchange rate
fluctuation is relatively volatile.
At 31st December 2013, if RMB
had strengthened/weakened
by 5% (2012: 5%) against HKD
with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit would
have been HK$1,280,000
higher/lower (2012: post-tax
profit of HK$1,016,000 higher/
lower) respectively mainly as
a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of
RMB-denominated financial
assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(@  Market risk (cont’d)

(i)

Interest rate risk

Other than bank balances and
deposits (the “Interest Bearing
Assets”) specified in Notes
19 and 20, the Group has no
other significant interest-bearing
assets as at 31st December
2013.

The Group’s interest rate risk
arises from borrowings (the
“Interest Bearing Liabilities”) as
set out in Note 23. Borrowings
issued at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. Borrowings issued at
fixed rates expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk. The
Group also analyses its interest
rate exposure periodically by
considering refinancing, renewal
of existing positions and
alternative financing. As interest
rate on all of the Group’s trust
receipt loans and short term
bank loan as at 31st December
2013 had been determined
at the inception of the loans
and would remain the same
up to maturity, therefore the
borrowings were not subject to
cash flow interest rate risk.
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3.

Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1

Financial risk factors (cont’d)
Market risk (cont’d)

@

(i)

Interest rate risk (cont’d)

At 31st December 2013 with all
other variables held constant, if
the interest rate on HK dollar-
denominated borrowings at
variable interest rate, bank
balances and deposits had
increased/decreased by 10
basis points (2012: 10 basis
points), the corresponding
decrease/increase in net
finance costs (representing
interest income on the Interest
Bearing Assets less interest
expense on Interest Bearing
Liabilities) would have resulted
in an increase/decrease in the
Group’s profit after taxation
by HK$112,000 (2012: the
corresponding decrease/
increase in net finance costs
would have resulted in an
increase/decrease in the
Group’s profit after taxation by
HK$74,000). At 31st December
2013, if the interest rate on
Renminbi-denominated bank
balances and deposits had
increased/decreased by 75
basis points, the corresponding
decrease/increase in net finance
costs would have resulted in
an increase/decrease in the
Group’s profit after taxation
by HK$198,000 (2012: if the
interest rate on Reminbi-
denominated bank balances
and deposits had increased/
decreased by 75 basis points,
the corresponding decrease/
increase in net finance costs
would have resulted in an
increase/decrease in the
Group’s profit after taxation by
HK$175,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)

@

(b)

Market risk (cont’d)

(i)  Interest rate risk (cont’d)
The Group has not used any
interest rate swap to hedge its
exposure to interest rate risk.

Credit and counterparty risk

Credit risk mainly arises from
bank deposits, trade and other
receivables, and other deposits. The
carrying amounts of these balances
substantially represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit and
counterparty risk in relation to
financial assets.

As at 31st December 2012 and 2013,
all the bank deposits are deposited
in high quality financial institutions
without significant credit risk. The
credit risk on bank deposits is limited
because over 75% of the Group’s
bank balances are placed with
subsidiaries of state-owned banks
and others are placed with reputable
financial institutions. Management
does not expect any loss from non-

performance of these banks.
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MR RME

3.

Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1

Financial risk factors (cont’d)

(b)

(©

Credit and counterparty risk (cont’d)
In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue
trade and other receivables. In
addition, the Group reviews regularly
the recoverable amount of each
individual trade and other receivables
to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. Rental deposits made to
landlords are also considered to be of
low risk. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced. The Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk,
with exposure spread over a number
of counterparties and customers.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management
includes maintaining sufficient cash
and availability of funding from an
adequate amount of committed credit
facilities. Management maintains
rolling forecast of the Group’s liquidity
reserves which comprises undrawn
banking facilities and cash and cash
equivalents, on the basis of expected
cash flows.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1

Financial risk factors (cont’d)

(©

Liquidity risk (cont’d)

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the date of
financial reporting to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual

undiscounted cash flows.

At 31st December 2013

Group

Trade and other payables

Borrowings

Interest payment on
borrowings (note)

R=2-Z#+-A=t+-H
50

BARAMENTE

-

EEZH 8 ()

Company NG
Other payables At FIE
Amounts due to subsidiaries  FERHTB A RZUE

At 31st December 2012 RZB-Z4+ZRA=+-H
Group *50

Trade and other payables B ZREMERFE
Borrowings e

Interest payment on EEZFIE A (F5E)

borrowings (note)

Company HAF
Other payables e TR
Amounts due to subsidiaries  FE[HIB A AIFUA

3.
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Less than Between 1 Between 2

1 year and 2 years and5years  Over 5 years
—ElR —E£ERmE AEERE RAEYE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TER TER
55,962 - - -
96,761 - - -
759 - - -
1,696 - - -
15,753 - - -
47,552 - — =
67,662 - - -
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98,628 - - -

—T—=FF3 Annual Report 2013

93



94

Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RME

3.

Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1

Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(c)  Liquidity risk (cont’d)
Note:

The interest payment on borrowings is
calculated on the respective amounts
held as at 31st December 2012 and 2013
without taking into account of any future
change in market interest rate. Floating-
rate interest is estimated using applicable
interest rates as at 31st December 2012
and 2013 respectively.

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or
sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the
Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total
debt divided by total equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.2

3.3

Capital risk management (cont’d)

The Group’s strategy was to maintain a
solid capital base to support the operations
and development of its business in the long
term. Given its existing principal business,
management considers a gearing ratio as
measured by total debt to total equity of not
more than 50% as solid and reasonable.
The table below analyses the Group’s
capital structure at 31st December 2012
and 2013 as follows:

Total debts BEE

Total equity 1@

BERAFELLE

Gearing ratio

Note:

Increase in gearing ratio during the year is a
result of the increase in total borrowings.

Fair value estimation

The carrying value of trade and other
receivables, bank balances and deposits,
trade and other payables and borrowings
are a reasonable approximation of their fair
values. The fair value of financial liabilities
for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that
is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.
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Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities of the Group are
discussed below.

(@) Provision for impairment of trade and

other receivables

The policy for provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables of the Group
is based on the evaluation of collectability
and on management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement
is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including
the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each customer. If
the financial conditions of customers of
the Group were to deteriorate, resulting
in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowances may be
required.

(b) Provision for impairment of inventories
The management of the Group reviews
the marketability of inventory items at
the end of each reporting period, and
makes allowance for obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items identified that
are no longer suitable for sale. The
management estimates the net realisable
value for inventories based primarily on the
latest invoice prices and current market
conditions. The Group carries out an
inventory review on a product-by-product
basis at the end of each reporting period
and makes provision for obsolete items.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (cont’d)

(c)

(d)

Provision for bonus and customer
claims

Management reviews the provision for
bonus and customer claims at the end
of each reporting period to determine
whether the provision is adequate based
on historical experience and most reliable
estimates. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for bonus and
customer claims.

Employee benefits-share based
payments

The determination of the fair value of the
share options granted requires estimates
in determining the expected volatility of
the share price, the dividends expected
on the shares, the risk-free interest rate
for the life of the option and the number of
share options that are expected to become
exercisable as stated in Note 8. Where the
outcome of the number of options that are
exercisable is different, such difference will
impact the consolidated income statement
in the subsequent remaining vesting period
of the relevant share options.

5. Segment information

The Group determines its operating segments

based on the reports reviewed by the chief

operating decision-maker that are used to make

strategic decisions. The chief operating decision-

maker has been identified as the executive

directors of the Company. The chief operating

decision-maker assesses the performance of the

operating segments based on a measure of profit

attributable to equity holders of the Company.
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Segment information (cont’d)

During the vyear, the Group has only one
reportable segment, which is trading of pipes
and fittings. Trading of pipes and fittings includes
wholesale, retail and logistics operations
substantially in Hong Kong and Macau.

Geographical information

The Group is domiciled in Hong Kong. The
Group’s revenue from external customers by
geographical location are detailed below:

SWBEH (|

RER > AEERAEREREREHE S —HA
FTERONE - BEMNEMGEZIBRIBESRE
NORFI 2 L% - TERYIRES

HWE D BER
ARERRES o AL EEIE 5 EHE AN
BEHBALT

Revenue

A
For the year ended
31st December
BET+T"A=1+—HLEE

Hong Kong BB
Mainland China R B AT,
Others HAth

The Group’s non-current assets (other than

financial instruments and deferred tax assets) by
geographical location are detailed below:

Hong Kong
Mainland China
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BB
B A 3t

2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET TET
483,866 443,580
708 2,954

19,569 8,593
504,143 455127

AEBERWESHMHFERBEE (TEEERT

ANRETRIBEE) AT ¢

2013 2012

—Z—-=F —E—_fF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

2,572 2,121

3,210 4,260

5,782 6,381




Other gains, net
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6. Hflk$H

A5 R RO aE

2013 2012
=% —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TH#T FAT
Write-back of trade and B 5 K FH b FERT R B
other payables - 634
Net exchange gains R Gy 1,743 a72
Net loss on disposal of property, HEVZE - BE K& E 2 EEFE
plant and equipment (216) (13)
Compensation from BT 1E (P )
government (note) - 2,682
Others Hih 1,041 304
2,568 4,579
Note: The amount represents compensation from s AT REEREEKE AEBRBEMN A

Urban Renewal Authority in relation to the

resumption of a leased property of the Group
located at G/F., 618 Shanghai Street, Mongkok,

Kowloon.

B A LB 618 5 TH 3 -
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China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EERAR

7. Expenses by nature 7. BAXHH
Operating profit is arrived at after charging/ ERFTINGGIA) THBEERES -
(crediting):
2013 2012
—2—-=F —T—CF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FHIT
Cost of inventories sold (Note 17) 2 HE&EZFEMKZA (M 17) 372,928 339,406
Auditor’s remuneration ZE R < 989 1,117
Depreciation of property, Y% -~ RENEEITE
plant and equipment 1,936 1,767
Employee benefit expenses BTEAMAX
(including directors’ (PREESHE (E8))
emoluments (Note 8)) 59,396 52,812
Operating lease payments EMAHER (st 14)
(Note 14) 17,727 16,587
Provision for/(reversal of) B 5 R E A EUGRIA
impairment of trade and ERE(E5) F58
other receivables, net 128 (10)
Provision for impairment of FERERETE
inventories, net 2,144 2,561
Other expenses HEAY 30,339 27,256
485,587 441,496
Representing: K&
Cost of sales SHERA 384,718 350,578
Selling and distribution costs SHE & SR AR 14,867 13,337
General and administrative —REITEE A 86,002 77,581
expenses
485,587 441,496




Notes to the Financial Statements
MR ERME

Employee benefit expenses 8. RERETAX(BRETE#MEL)
(including directors’ emoluments)
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FA&T
Wages and salaries TERFS 56,872 49,722
Pension costs — defined RS KA — ERRHE KRGS
contribution plans 1,766 1,718
Share based payment (note) AR A EERE 2 A 3R (B EE) 758 1,372
59,396 52,812
Note: FifeE
Details of share options are as follows: BARESFIBAT ¢
Exercise 3st Granted 3tst
Price December and December
Grantor Date of grant HK$ 2012 accepted Exercised Lapsed 2013
iR =%-= Bt - i3
BHHA RHAM %7 tZB=t-H bt B B4 tZA=1-H
The Gompany 3rd December 2009 0.071 345,000,000 - - - 345,000,000
Ki 22t A=R
The Company 5th May 2010 0083 16,000,000 - - - 16,000,000
N “Z-ZRATA
The Company 8th June 2011 00392 10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000
N “E—5xANR
Total 8 371,000,000 - - - 371,000,000
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Employee benefit expenses
(including directors’ emoluments)
(cont’d)

Note:

The share options are divided into 3 tranches with
exercise price of HK$0.071, HK$0.083 and HK$0.0392
and have option period from 3rd December 2009 to
2nd December 2019 (both days inclusive), 5th May
2010 to 4th May 2020 (both days inclusive) and 8th
June 2011 to 7th June 2021 (both days inclusive)
respectively. Details for the exercisable period are
shown in Note 21.

The estimated fair value of share options granted is
based on the Binomial model. The significant inputs into
the models are as follows:

EREFMAZ (BEEFEHE)E)

p

w

BERSAE D B3R TE {8 0.071 7 7T ~ 0.083 7 7T 2 0.0392
B =R - ZEERESRE SR AH_STAF
+—AZHE_T—hEFt+_A_H(BEEHEMA)
H-_Z—ZEERAARE-_Z-_TERANA(BIEE
EMB)MBE-Z—FNA/\BE-_Z-—F At
H(BPEEEMA) - (THEARFFBERMTE215)E -

ERHBRENGT AR EERE -AXNGERNG
"o AREXANEIZ2800T :

Company -3/
Date of grant ar]=p:1 8th June 2011 5th May 2010 3rd December 2009
—Z——%~ANE —Z—ZTFRARA —ZTThE+-A=H
Exercise price 1716(8 HK$0.0392 HK$0.083 HK$0.071
Expected volatility TEERRRE R IR 49% 55% 54%
Option life FEAR 10 years 10 years 10 years
104 104 104
Annual risk free interest rate FEERRAE 2.255% 2.86% 2.16%
Dividend yield ZEx 2.75% 3.10% 3.58%
Fair value YL HK$0.014 ~ HK$0.016 HK$0.026 ~ HK$0.038 HK$0.021 ~ HK$0.031

The expected volatility measured at the standard
deviation is based on the historical data of the weekly
share price movement of comparable companies of the
Company.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EERAR

AR B 2 MR N ER A AR Z ALA
AR5 B s 2 B 52 B -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A5 R RO aE

Employee benefit expenses 8. ERBETIMAX(BEESRME)(E)
(including directors’ emoluments)
(cont’d)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (@ E=E=M<
The remuneration of each Director for the SREERNHE_TE—="FR_FE——-F
year ended 31st December 2013 and 2012 +—A=+—HIFENMESEFINT
is set out below:
For the year ended 31st December 2013
BE-S-SE+BZt—HLEE
Group’s
Salaries contributions
and other Discretionary to retirement Share based
Fees benefits bonus scheme payment Total
FEEY
HeR Bkl DRRA
e  HiEH | B8R <HF  ERMAR #3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of Director 1.2 TR TF#T T#x T#n TEx TR
Lai Guanglin (note (i) Lai Guangin (Fii£ () - 3,348 267 - - 3,615
Yu Ben Ansheng (note (i) gz (FitsE (i) - 2,344 187 15 - 2,546
Lai Fulin BRER - 1,585 122 15 104 1,826
U Kean Seng RERK 200 - - - 62 262
Tsang Wai Yip (note i) B4 2 (B i) 132 349 - 21 198 700
Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson N 200 - - - 21 221
Chen Wei Wen REX 150 - - - 3 185
Yang Li oF 200 - - - 28 228
882 7,626 576 51 448 9,583
—T—=FF3 Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M5 R E

8. Employee benefit expenses

(including directors’ emoluments)

(cont’d)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (cont’d)

ExnE

Name of Director

Lai Guanglin (note (i)

Yu Ben Ansheng (note (i) % A (M
Lai Fulin PBARR:
U Kean Seng REK

Tsang Wai Yip (note (i)
Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson EUNE

Chen Wei Wen [1ESG
Yang Li G

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEXZ£EEERAF

Lai Guanglin (Ff75£ ()

B % (M i)

8. ERETMAX(BRETEME)(HE)
(@) E=M< (&)
For the year ended 31st December 2012
BEZ-—Ht+-A=t-HIEE
Group’s
Selaries contributions
and other  Discretionary toretirement  Share based

Fees benefits bonus scheme payment Total

AEEY

Fek BTE ARGA

e EMENM  BERL M ERHNR Lk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAL THL TET THT
2,933 - 134 - - 3,067
- 2,218 % 14 = 2,326
- 1,508 61 14 202 1,780
200 - - - 121 321
- 570 Il 35 148 824
200 - - - 40 240
150 - - - 62 212
200 - - - 47 247
3,683 4,291 360 63 620 9,017
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Employee benefit expenses
(including directors’ emoluments)
(cont’d)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (cont’d)
Notes:

(i) Re-designated from non-executive
Director to executive director with effect
from 14th March 2012.

(ii) Yu Ben Ansheng is the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.

(i)  Appointed as executive Director on 31st
August 2012 and re-designated as non-
executive director on 15th February 2013.
The amounts other than director fees
were the emoluments during the period as
executive director.

The emoluments of the directors fell within
the following bands:

8.

A5 R RO aE

EREFMAZ (BEEFEHE)E)

@ E=M<E (@
BFE -
() RZE-—-F=F+MAE HFEHTEF
ERERNTES -
(i)  AIERERARFRWEERTE
iy MZBE——FNA=+—BEZERNT
B YR -_T—=F"_A+HBEAE
RIFNTEE - ZBREFHRINGE
RITE SR -
EEZMENFUATAR -

Nil-HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001-HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001-HK$4,000,000

48 -1,000,00078 7T

1,000,001 /87T -1,500,000 77T
1,500,001 /87T -2,000,000 7 7T
2,000,001 77T -2,500,000 7 7T
2,500,001 77t -3,000,000 7 7T
3,000,001 787t -3,500,000 7 7T
3,500,001 /&7t -4,000,000 7 7T

2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
5 5

1 1

- 1

1 —

- 1

1 —

8 8

—T—=FF3 Annual Report 2013
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8. Employee benefit expenses 8. REREFMAX(BREFEML)(HE)
(including directors’ emoluments)
(cont’d)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b)

The five individuals whose emoluments

were the highest in the Group for the year

include three (2012: four) directors whose

emoluments are reflected in the analysis

presented above. The emoluments paid to

the remaining two (2012: one') individual(s)

were as follows:

Salaries and other short-term & I H 015 Hi{E B 87
employee benefits

Discretionary bonus B TEAT

Pension costs — defined RS KA — ERRHERETE
contribution plans

Share based payment LARS 10 A ERE TR

For the year ended 31 December 2012,
one of the directors was in the directorship
for only part of the year. The portion of his
emoluments not under directorship period
was disclosed as above in aggregate with
the other one individual with the highest
emoluments.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EERAR

EfUGRSHFAL

RER AEBRUKEFALTRIE=M
“E-CF A ES EFECRE
X 2D MRR - N TFEB (=T
—ZF M) ATZBEIT

2013 2012
—Zz—=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT THET
3,174 2,862

245 69

15 74

90 235

3,524 3,240

i HE_ZT——F+-_A=+—HLEE"
fEEmESRS  HA—FEENTHIR
—F o FiMEEZAESNIFESHME
F—EEEFALZIEEEE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR ERME

Employee benefit expenses 8. REREFMAX(BREFEML)(HE)
(including directors’ emoluments)
(cont’d)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (cont’d) (b) FHfuE=EHFH AL (HE)
The emoluments of the two (2012: one) —HR(ZE——F: —R) R ALZH
individual(s) fell within the following bands: AR5 EE -
2013 2012
—2—-=F T F
HK$1,500,000-HK$2,000,000 1,500,000 % 7t -2,000,000 & 7T 2 1
(c) Senior management remuneration by (c) ESREEBAEFMzEHE
band

AEREEA BN ZFHMAF N HIEE :

The remuneration of senior management fell
within the following bands:

2013 2012
—2—-=F —T—_fF

Nil-HK$1,000,000 £ -1,000,000 87T 4 3
HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T -1,500,000 7% 7T - 1
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 37T -2,000,000 7 7T 1 =
5 4

—T—=FF3 Annual Report 2013
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10.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EERAR

Finance costs, net

Bank interest income
Interest expense on bank

borrowings wholly repayable

within one year

Tax expense

Current taxation:

Hong Kong profits tax
Overseas tax
Qver-provision in prior years

Total current tax
Deferred taxation (Note 24):
Origination and reversal of

temporary differences

Tax expense

9. MEBRBE
2013 2012
—2—-=F T F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiET FHBT
RITHBUA (863) (745)
AR—FRNBEEEZ
RITEEZA B
1,729 2,001
866 1,256
11. RIEZH
2013 2012
—E—=% —F——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHBT
BNHARRIA :
BBFEH 3,457 2,979
NEBAN ] 93 157
LARTEF[E %1% (14) (23)
BEAFR IR 4B RE 3,536 3,113
EIEFR A (FizE24) ¢
R ERE 2 B A N B O]
61 141
HELH 3,597 3,254




Notes to the Financial Statements
MR ERME

10. Tax expense (cont’d) 11. RIAZH ()
BB NG AFE R TR TR ML 2 16.5%
T : 16.5%) FTE o BINHIBIIREE
N2 T RB R IR ASELEXBER 2]
TR -

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the
rate of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profit for the year. Taxation on
overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the
rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax AEEFBARA RN MBS HEBRERADTS
differs from the theoretical amount that would MEHEMTE 2B mii s s =58 T :
arise using the Hong Kong profits tax rate as

follows:
2013 2012
—B—-=F —B—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FIT
Profit before income tax F A& A 20,258 16,954
Tax calculated at tax rate of 1#16.5% (ZZF—=%F : 16.5%)
16.5% (2012: 16.5%) MEFTE 218 3,343 2,797
Effect of different tax rates in HAb RlE 5 TR R 2 52
other jurisdictions (362) (255)
Utilisation of previously 152 F SE AR TR 2 T IR B 18
unrecognised tax loss (196) (20)
Unrecognised tax losses RERTIAEE 941 1,044
Tax effect of income not AR WA Z BiTa R 2
subject to taxation (194) (513)
Tax effect of expenses not NAHIR 2 S 2 B Ta s &
deductible for taxation purposes 79 224
Over-provision in prior years ZRIFEE %R (14) (23)
Tax expense MBS 3,597 3,254

—T—=FF3 Annual Report 2013
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11.

12.

Profit attributable to equity holders

The profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company is dealt with in the financial statements
of the Company to the extent of profit of
approximately HK$87,881,000 (2012: loss of
HK$3,127,000).

Earnings per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings
per share is based on the profit attributable to
equity holders and weighted average number
of shares with adjustments where applicable as
follows:

11.

12.

B IEISH ARG RT

AR FIRAE R A AR RN M Bk NER EE 2
A DA M A #187,881,0008 7T (=T — =4 :
3,127,000 BTTE1R © )

=iRET

IR ESREREN M E RN TIREF
MR A ARG & B BT B ¥
YIRRER (B ERF FLAFR) ¢

2013 2012
=5 —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Profit attributable to equity STESRERRT
holders of the Company for R RIIRERE AR R
the purpose of basic
earnings per share 16,661 13,700
Thousand Thousand
Number of shares Bin&H T T
Weighted average number of STESRERRT
ordinary shares for the purpose AR 2 INET A% 2K
of basic earnings per share 13,332,700 13,332,700

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by
adjusting the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of dilutive potential ordinary shares
arising from the Company’s share options.
Diluted earnings per share for the years ended
31st December 2012 and 2013 equal basic
earnings per share as the exercise of the
outstanding share options would be anti-dilutive.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&£EHERAR

AAEEREEANE - EHDHRITERBZ INE
FHBELRAE  AERRABEEEEN ZRTT
EEREETHER -BE T —FRK_-F
—=ZFT-A=t—HIMAEFE - AITERT
EHEREARBEFE  RUMEFE 2 SHH#
BRNGFNERERRF -



13.

14.

Dividend

Notes to the Financial Statements
MR =RME

At the Board meeting held on 21st March 2014,

the Board did not recommend a final dividend for
the year ended 31st December 2013 (2012: nil).

Property, plant and equipment

Group

Cost

At 1st January 2013
Exchange differences
Addtions
Disposals

At 31st December 2013

Accumulated depreciation

At 1st January 2013
Exchange differences
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31st December 2013

Net book value
At 31st December 2013

Bk
W-E-=%-f-H
EXER
HE
il

NE-ZE+ZA=1-F

4 ]
W-2-=£-f-H
EizH
KEENE

3

RZF-=F+2f=1-A

WER
NoF-FtoA=t-8

13. &R
R-E-—MNF=A-+ - HBRTHNEEEEH
L BEEETEBREBE_T—=F1+=F
=S+—BUEFEZRERE(ZZ—Z4 : &)
14. YR - BB KR
AEE
Plant, Office furniture,
machinery ~ Leasehold fixtures and Office  Computer
and equipment  improvements fittings ~ equipment  equipment Motor vehicles Total
IR BAZEM
Ritfi  HEWREE  RERGA XERf L1 AE 1]
HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS" 000
Tin T TR Tin TR TR Fin
8,624 10,805 869 9 7613 427 32,241
19 4 2 2 1 3 202
1 293 TX] - 1,189 - 1,536
(140) - - - - (301) (441)
8,614 11,145 914 101 8,803 3,967 33,544
5574 9,253 799 68 7,499 2678 25,366
62 16 2 1 - 10 9
720 580 29 I 188 42 1,936
63 - - - - (68) (131)
6,23 9,849 830 16 7,687 3,021 21,162
231 1,296 84 2% 1,116 940 5782
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(cont’d)

Group (cont’d)

Cost

At 1st January 2012
Exchange differences
Addtions
Disposals

At 31t December 2012

Accumulated depreciation

At 1st January 2012
Exchange differences
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31t December 2012

Net book value
At 31t December 2012

14. Property, plant and equipment

13
WZF-Z5-A-A
EfZHE
HE
ik

N_E-—F+-A=1-A

2hiE
el
EfEE
REENE
ik

i S o

FESE
i S i oy

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEZEEERAF

Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RME

14. 5% - BB Raxm (1)

REE (&)
Plant, (ffice furniture,

machinry Leasehold  fixtures and (ffice Computer

and equipment  improvements fitings equipment equipment  Motor vehicles Total
fiz a8 BAERR

Wi BEWFRE  RERR 5% Sl nE g
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKSTO00  HKS'O0O
Titn Th TR Titn Th TR Titn
7753 9,901 868 R 7,600 3233 29447
B 7 1 1 - 6 53
833 897 - 6 13 1,098 2847
- - - - - (100) (100)
8,624 10805 869 9 7613 4231 247
4963 8,768 137 57 7,388 2,238 24,151
19 4 - - - 2 2%
592 481 62 1 1 510 1,767
- - - - - () ()
5,074 9,283 79 68 7499 2673 25,866
3,060 1562 70 Rl 114 1564 6,381




14. Property, plant and equipment

(cont’d)

Company

Cost
At 1st January 2013 and
31st December 2013

Accumulated depreciation
At 1st January 2013
Charge for the year

At 31st December 2013

Net book value
At 31st December 2013

Cost
At 1st January 2012 and
31st December 2012

Accumulated depreciation
At 1st January 2012
Charge for the year

At 31st December 2012

Net book value
At 31st December 2012

Notes to the Financial Statements
MR =RME

5% 3
RZZE—=5—H—-HBRk
“F-=%ftZA=t+-8

REAE
R-_ZE—=5—H—H
REFHE

R_F—=F+-A=t—H

IRER({E
R-_B—=F+-A=1+—H

5% 3
RZE——F—HA—HK
—T——F+-A=+—H

ERINE
R-E——F—H—H
REEHE
W_E——F+-A=+—H

IR E
RZE——F+-A=+—H

14. 5% - BB Raxm (1)

ARTH
Office furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvements fittings Total
BMAERME
HEMERE RER®E #am
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TET
208 41 249
124 16 140
60 8 68
184 24 208
24 17 41
208 41 249
64 8 72
60 8 68
124 16 140
84 25 109
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14. Property, plant and equipment 14. % - BERRE (&)
(cont’d)
Lease rentals amounting to HK$17,545,000 HYEMAEHEEENEER S A A
(2012: HK$16,395,000) and HK$182,000 (2012: 17,545,000 87T (ZF— 4 : 16,395,000 7T)
HK$192,000) relating to the lease of property and 182,000/ C(—ZF— =4 : 192,000/87T) @ I
motor vehicles respectively are included in the PREGFEWERP (FE7)

consolidated income statement (Note 7).

15. Investments in subsidiaries 15. RELATIRE
Company
EAF
2013 2012
—Zz—=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TH#T FA&TT
Unlisted investments, at cost JE ETHIRE (R A) 86,938 86,938
Capital contribution relating to HA DA A7 7 B R HY
share-based payment TRABBREEREA 3,022 2,736
89,960 89,674
Amounts due from subsidiaries JEULBH B A Rl FIE
Company
ENAF
2013 2012
—E—=%F —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T T
Amounts due from subsidiaries FELBT B A Bl 5RIE 22,286 15,441
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15. Investments in subsidiaries (cont’d)

As at 31st December 2012 and 2013, the
amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.
As at 31st December 2013, amounts due
from subsidiaries of HK$9,279,000 (2012:
HK$2,771,000) were denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and HK$13,007,000 (2012:
HK$12,670,000) were denominated in Renminbi.
The carrying values of amounts due from
subsidiaries approximate their fair values.

Amounts due to subsidiaries

As at 31st December 2012 and 2013, the
amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

The carrying values of amounts due to
subsidiaries approximate their fair values.

Details of principal subsidiaries which, in the
Directors’ opinion, materially affect the results
and/or net assets of the Group as at 31st
December 2013, are set out in Note 30.

A5 R RO aE

15. RIFELFRE (&)

R-BE——FR—_FT—=F+-"A=+—H
WHEAR 2 RIBREER RS BEAREXK
REE RNZT—=F+-A=+—0  EK
BB A RIFKIEH » 9,279,000 L (ZF——4F :
2,771,000 7T ) A& JLEH & + 13,007,000 7T
—ZT— 14 :12,670,000/87C) AARKEHE -
FEUP B A Al FOEREESRFEE A ERS -

i RPN E
RZB——FR_ZF—=F+"_A=+—H8 " ' E
S B ARFIEAEERR REEAREREE

o

fi

FENHIE A RRIBZ FREEEKREAAERSE °

EERARYAKEZEER IR _T—=F
ToAZ+T—RZFEEBREATEZ T 2M
B AR ZFFISENMIEES0
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16. Financial instruments by category 16. BRERESMHEMTIA
Group REH

2013 2012

—Zz—=F —E—fF

HK$’000 HK$'000

Loans and receivables HR R ERR THT FAT
Assets as per consolidated REMBERRKRTREE

statement of financial position

Trade receivables, deposits B REWEIE - Be Kk

and other receivables H At fEUGRIR 124,902 111,496

Pledged bank deposits (Note 19) EHRIRI TR (FIEE19) 69,196 94,348

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) IR MIR&ZEY (FizE20) 107,039 26,889

Total Rk 301,137 232,733

2013 2012

—E—=F —T——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

Other financial liabilities Htti AR THET FH&T
Liabilities as per consolidated e VBRI RAE

statement of financial position

Trade and other payables B 5 KR HAFERFIE 55,962 47,552

Borrowings (Note 23) BE (fizE23) 96,761 67,662

Total k) 152,723 115,214

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EERAR




16. Financial instruments by category

(cont’d)

Company

Loans and receivables

Assets as per statement of
financial position
Deposits and other receivables
Amounts due from subsidiaries
(Note 15)
Cash and cash equivalents
(Note 20)

Total

Other financial liabilities

Liabilities as per statement of
financial position
Other payable
Amounts due to subsidiaries
(Note 15)

Notes to the Financial Statements
MR ERME

2N

HREER®R

MR KRIREE

e MEMRKIA
R LBl 8 2 ) R (BRE 15)

BHe MR EEY (FiFE20)

#eER

Rttt B AR

MBRRARIRAR

HAf & 5K
FEASH BB X AR (FRE 15)

16. BREHNSHEMI A (|)

2013 2012
—E—=f —F——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiET FA&TT

1 1

22,286 15,441
247 258
22,534 15,700
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fi#T T
1,696 1,434
15,753 98,628
17,449 100,062
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Inventories

Raw materials B R
Work in progress st Catr
Merchandises B

At 31st December 2013, the provision
for impairment of inventories amounted
to approximately HK$20,498,000 (2012:
HK$18,354,000).

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses
and included in cost of sales amounted to
HK$372,928,000 (2012: HK$339,406,000) (Note
7).

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EERAR

Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RME

17.

T8
2013 2012
—E—=f —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
1,826 5,568
3,763 1,361
151,974 167,927
157,563 174,856

R-ZE—=F+-"A=+—8 GFEREEED
#£20,498,000/8 7L (==& — — 4 : 18,354,000/5

JL) °

ERAHWIIAHERARE N 27 ERAZE
372,928,000 7T (=T — — 4 : 339,406,000 8
7C) (HIRET)



Notes to the Financial Statements
MR ERME

18. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables
Less: provision for impairment

Trade receivables — net

Prepayments

Other receivables, deposits
and other assets

Rental deposits

Less: non-current portion

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, other
receivables, rental deposits and other assets

approximate their fair values.

B SRR
R ER R

B HRAGR— %8
SEUNES
HA WA -

meREMEE
Baze

B IR ER D

18. HHREMEWKRIT

Group Company
F5E FaH

2013 2012 2013 2012
= | —T-_F| ZIB-=F| T _F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET FHT FHET
119,249 100,359 - =
(1,363) (1,235) - -
117,886 99,124 - =
27,428 21,711 210 1,236
2,961 8,336 1 1
4,055 4,036 - -
34,444 34,083 211 1,237
152,330 133,207 211 1,237
(5,776) (6,416) - -
146,554 126,791 211 1,237

B 5 RWHOR - R FIR - BEe REM
BEZRESREER

.
FRR

EEMRE -
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18. Trade and other receivables (cont’d)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade
and other receivables are denominated in the
following currencies:

Hong Kong dollars PETT
RMB AR¥E
usD e
MOP ke
Others EHAh

The Group generally grants credit term of 60
to 120 days for its trading of pipes and fittings
operation. The ageing analysis of the trade
receivables based on the due date is as follows:

Within credit period EEEHR

1 to 30 days 1 RE30K
31 to 60 days 31 RE60X
61 to 90 days 61 KZE 90K
91 to 120 days 91 RE 120K
Over 120 days BB 120K

120 China Pipe Group Limited HEIEXZ£EEERAF

18. HHRAEMEURIN (&)

AREE S REMERHAZ EESHA TR
WHHE

2013 2012
—E—=F —T——fF
HK$°000 HK$'000
T FiIT
123,268 113,407
9,946 11,680
15,665 7,971
2,968 149

483 -
152,330 133,207

AEE—RETHREREHEFIEKZEEHRA
BO0E 120K - B S EWGIZEIEI R Z BREk 5 AT 40
T

2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
92,747 69,332
15,736 22,323
4,218 4,767
792 1,271
1,075 9
4,681 2,657
119,249 100,359




Notes to the Financial Statements

18. Trade and other receivables (cont’d)

Trade receivables that are current or past
due less than four months are not considered
impaired. As of 31st December 20183,
trade receivables of HK$25,139,000 (2012:
HK$29,792,000) were past due but not
considered to be impaired. These relate to a
number of independent customers for whom
there is no recent history of default. The ageing
analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

18.

1 to 30 days
31 to 60 days
61 to 90 days
91 to 120 days
Over 120 days

1 RZE30K
31 XE60K
61 XZE 90K
91 XE 120K
B 120K

As at 31st December 2013, trade receivables
of HK$1,363,000 (2012: HK$1,235,000) were
impaired and provided for. The individually
impaired receivables mainly relate to customers
which are in unexpected difficult financial
situations. These receivables are past due more
than 120 days.

A5 R RO aE

B RAERRIE ()

BEisk @ B E A LA T 2 B B EMHBET 2 =
BERE -H#E_T—=ZF+_A=+—8"
Z 5 & Ik 5% TE 25,139,00058 7L ( — T — — 4 :
29,792,000/ 7T) E @ BB R R AME - %2F
SRS A AR Rk B R AR o
ZEB HEVGRIBZRRAITAT

2013 2012
—E—-=F —T——fF
HK$°000 HK$'000
T FIT
15,736 22,323
4,218 4,767
792 1,271
1,075 9
3,318 1,422
25,139 29,792

R-ZE—=%+-"HA=+—8  B5rlkxE
1,363,000 T (ZZ=— =4 : 1,235,000/ 7T) 2
VERE R o (BRI B R E R UGKIE = 2 8158 SRR
ANEER$E 2 TFER - ZZRIGRIE R BB A
120K o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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18. Trade and other receivables (cont’d)

Movements on the provision for impairment of
trade receivables are as follows:

At 1st January
Provision for impairment BB
Receivables written off during
the year as uncollectible
Unused amounts reversed

At 31st December

The addition and release of provision for impaired
receivables have been included in general and
administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement. Amounts charged to the
provision account are generally written off when
there is no expectation of recovering additional
cash.

As at 31st December 2012 and 2013, no other
receivables were impaired and provided for.

Save as above, the other classes within trade and
other receivables do not contain impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the fair value of each class of
receivables mentioned above. The Group does
not hold any collateral as security.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EERAR

R—A—H8

F 8 UK TR R BE R (B T 5

REAFIRREE

Rt+—A=+—8

18. HHRAEMEURIN (&)

B RB 2 RERBEEIT

2013 2012
—2—-=F —T—CF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FHT
1,235 1,657

128 22

- 312)

- (32)

1,363 1,235

S ERUE R IRFTE MR R 2 BT T AR S
WK RNz —REITHER ° REHERRF HIERR
SR —RNAR TS WD ERINR S FHEH o

NZTE——FER_ET—=F+-_A=+—8 %
BEMEWRFIEER B -

Br LAl ASh - B 5 R E AR M RIR A E A IR B I
BEFDREEE °

RiE Bz &RAEERR A LG SR EUKRIA
ZARME - AREWES B TAEAREEM -
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19. Pledged bank deposits

As at 31st December 2013, bank deposits
of HK$47,950,000 (2012: HK$73,000,000)
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
bank deposits of HK$21,246,000 (2012:
HK$21,348,000) denominated in Renminbi were
pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking
facilities (Note 23).

The effective interest rate on pledged bank
deposits was 1.81% (2012: 0.67%) per annum
and these deposits are matured within 9 to 178
days (2012: 10 to 178 days).

20. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and in hand RIThFHERE

Maximum exposure to credit risk RS HRSEERE

A5 R RO aE

19. EEHBITER

RZZF—=F+=-A=+—H - 47,950,000 7T
— T — —4F : 73,000,000 7T ) AB TLEHE K&
21,246,00078 7T (= ZF— —4F : 21,348,000/ 7T)
AARBTEZRITERE FRIER - (EAEASE
EIRITEEREE 2R (M3E23) °

BEEFRTERZERFERAFE181%(ZZ
——F:067%) WEFERZEHEANTFIXE
178 K (ZE—=—F : 10 RE178K) °

20. e RHEFR/Y

Group Company
F5E b /N

2013 2012 2013 2012
—2—=f| T | 8= | —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
TERT THIT T#T FHAT
107,039 26,889 247 258
106,912 26,635 247 258

—T—=FF3 Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M5 R E

20. Cash and cash equivalents (cont’d)

The carrying amounts of the Group and the

Company’s cash and cash equivalents are

denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollars
RMB

usb

AUD

Other currencies

BT
AR
X
BT
HinE%

20. BeaRBReERY (&)

AEBRARARZAE MR EFEY L RELER
BATEREHE

Group Company
F£M F2F

2013 2012 2013 2012
Z$-Zf| " T—F| IB-ZF| T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET TET FHT
90,642 14,629 247 258
14,012 10,629 - -
107 141 - -
153 207 - -
2,125 1,283 - -
107,039 26,889 247 258

The conversion of these RMB denominated
balances into foreign currencies and the
remittance of these funds out of Mainland China
is subject to the exchange control restrictions
imposed by the PRC government.

21. Share capital

At 1st January and RZE—
31st December 2012 +=A
At 1st January and RZT—
31st December 2013 +=A

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EERAR

RZEFAAREHEZERABRBINERAEZE
BoERPE  BXPEBNEREIMNEE HIE
FEARER

21. &
Number of
shares issued
SRTRHHE
Thousands HK$’000
Fig i
—HA—B&
—H 13,332,700 26,665
—H—Bk
—H 13,332,700 26,665




21.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Share capital (cont’d)

The authorised share capital of the Company is
HK$500,000,000 comprising 250,000 million
shares (2012: 250,000 million shares) with a par
value of HK$0.002 per share (2012: HK$0.002
per share). All issued shares are fully paid.

Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted a share option
scheme (“Scheme”) under which the directors
of the Company are authorised at their absolute
discretion, to invite any eligible participants
as defined in the Scheme, to take up options
to subscribe for shares in the Company. The
subscription price will be determined by the
Board, but shall be at least the highest of (a)
the closing price of shares as stated in the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date on which the relevant options
are deemed to be granted and accepted in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme (“the
Commencement Date”), which must be a day
on which the Hong Kong Stock Exchange is
open for the business of dealing in securities
(“Trading Day”); (b) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for
the five Trading Days immediately preceding
the Commencement Date; and (c) the nominal
value of the shares. A consideration of HK$10
is payable on acceptance of the grant of option.
The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the Scheme
may not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of adoption of the
Scheme. The number of shares may be refreshed
by the approval of the shareholders and the
refreshed limit of the number of shares must not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of the approval of the
refreshed limit. The Scheme became effective
for a period of ten years commencing 24th June
2004.

21.

A5 R RO aE

B (1)

A ) 2 5K TE B AR & 500,000,00078 78 © &R
EE0.002% T (=2 — — 4 : TR E0.002
# 7T ) $£250,000,000,0008( — T — — 4 :
250,000,000,000 %) 487X  FTE EZHITRHEE
R -

BT 8
RARERM—BBRAERT S ([BAERE)) -
Bt - REARFES2ERNBERIMNEER
28%E (Ex ABRERTE) ZRA BB A AR
MBEEE ABERHEFTSETE @ ETSE
R (a) BAn 1R 76 BRRE AR 15 A5 A i PR B A i R 21 16k
FELEEMAE R (FRBrEH]) (AREBHMR
REEFEEXEB2BHMIRZA D) EERRE
B ERRERARWHIE  (b) RIDHRER
Fin B AREE R AR S A EREMIMET AR
EBRMAHRFHRHE  R(BEHEE=EFZ
ReE - BFARLZSNBERER  ARAZAX
10782 RME - RIFBRIERT SR L 2 EAE
BRZBHESHE  TSEBRABRETE
ERARRADHEITRAZ10% ° B8 E A Bk
REEEFH - EEEHZBOEE LRTGEBB
HEEH R Z BRARREHITRAZ10% °
B EH _TTOFE A - TEOHBHTF
NBR -
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21. Share capital (cont’d)

Share Option Scheme (cont’d)

U)

On 3rd December 2009, 592,000,000
share options were offered to and accepted
by Directors and employees, with an
exercise price of HK$0.071 and an option
period of 10 years commencing from
3rd December 2009 and expiring on 2nd
December 2019 (both days inclusive). The
options granted to the grantees are vested
in stages and be exercised in the following
manner:

Maximum percentage of the options exercisable

iz RRERRE AL

20%
20%
20%
20%
20%

On 5th May 2010, 16,000,000 share
options were offered to and accepted by a
Director and an employee, with an exercise
price of HK$0.083 and an option period
of 10 years commencing from 5th May
2010 and expiring on 4th May 2020 (both
days inclusive). The options granted to
the grantees are vested in stages and be
exercised in the following manner:

Maximum percentage of the options exercisable

iTEZREERRES L

20%
20%
20%
20%
20%

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&£EHERAR

21. Be#F(##)

Eﬁﬂﬁ%‘l‘;](%g)

U)

RZZZNF+ZA=H AEERES
K& 8 Z 4930 B &5 41 592,000,000 17 & 1%
- ZEEREZITEER0.07T1 BT R
RERRATF AT NF+-A=

BRGBE_FT—NF+_A-_HHHBH(2HE
HEMA) - BTERANERERDREE

BB - WIRAT AT

Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the options

TS 5 Lz RR

3/6/2010 - 2/12/2019
3/6/2011 - 2/12/2019
3/6/2012 - 2/12/2019
3/6/2013 - 2/12/2019
3/6/2014 - 2/12/2019

(i)

R_ZT—ZTFRARB AEERESEN
& B B4 B & # 49 16,000,000 17 ¥ i%
¥ ZEREREZITFEERO0.083B T &
BRERRATF BH-_ZT—ZFAHAA
BRGRE-_T-_ZFRAMBEH(2EE
BMA) - I FEBEANBREG SRS
B - WIRATHRITE -

Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the options

TRERMEREE 2 Lz MR

5/11/2010 - 4/5/2020
5/11/2011 - 4/5/2020
5/11/2012 - 4/5/2020
5/11/2013 - 4/5/2020
5/11/2014 - 4/5/2020
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21. Share capital (cont’d)

Share Option Scheme (cont’d)

(i)

On 8th June 2011, 10,000,000 share
options were offered to and accepted
by a Director, with an exercise price of
HK$0.0392 and an option period of 10
years commencing from 8th June 2011
(both
days inclusive). The options granted to

and expiring on 7th June 2021

the grantees are vested in stages and be
exercised in the following manner:

Maximum percentage of the options exercisable
AfHECBRERRESLL

20%
20%
20%
20%
20%

Vesting of certain options granted to certain

employees are subject to achievement of profit

target.

Movements in the number of share options

outstanding during the year are as follows:

At 31st December 2012 and

1st January 2013 —E—=%—H—H
Granted and accepted BRI W 4
Lapsed BEREK

At 31st December 2013

A 35 8 | P ok

21. Be#F(##)

BT & (&)

(i)

RZZT——FRANB AEER—{E
B E 430 B £ 45 10,000,000 17 B8 A% 4
ZEBBRRE 2 1TEER0.03928 T & A%
EHRATFE BH_ZT——F/A/\BH
BE_ZT-_—FXALANB(BEEER
H) - BTFEBFANBRESSEERFEB, I
RIAT AR

Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the options
TERRBRET 2 LR

8/12/2011 - 7/6/2021
8/12/2012 - 7/6/2021
8/12/2013 - 7/6/2021
8/12/2014 - 7/6/2021
8/12/2015 - 7/6/2021

BYETREZE THBRERER SN BETA
BETERES -

FA - MATTERBERE 22T

RZZE——F+-_A=1+—HK

R-_F—=%+_HA=+—H

Average
exercise
price in HK$ Number of
per share options
BEERZ
FITEE
(#&7T) FRRRMER B
0.071 371,000,000
0.071 371,000,000

—ZT—=FF3% Annual Report 2013
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21. Share capital (cont’d)

22,

Share Option Scheme (cont’d)

Out of 371,000,000 (2012: 371,000,000)
outstanding share options, 226,000,000 (2012:

169,000,000) share options were exercisable.

Reserve

Group

At 1st January 2012

Proft for the year

Currency translation
differences

Share based payment

At 31t December 2012 and
1st January 2013

Proft for the year

Currency translation
diferences

Share based payment

Actuarial gain on
post-employment beneft
Obligations, net of tax

At 31st December 2013

RZF-£-f-H
EgEA
EliEzE

IR AERGR

RZF-2f
tZR=+-Bk
Z5-=£-f-A

ERaA

ERMEEE

IR BERNR
BRRENERY
FENE R

/\ig*zi
tZB=t-8

21. B (#)
BB REST 2 (%)
7 371,000,000 f% ( ==& — = 4 : 371,000,000)
& AR # - 226,000,000k ( = T — = F:
169,000,000) A AT
22. Gk
AEM
Share
Capital Merger hased
Share reserve reserve Statutory Other ~ Exchange payment Retained
premium (notefi)) (notefii) reserve reserve reserve reserve eamings Total
HRf
REER AfER HERD #e
RiER (e () (WG  EERRE )] | ER G fHR G &l L]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK§000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK§000
126,618 34,115 3,700 pl - 1916 6,654 97,765 210,792
- - - - - - - 13,700 13700
- - - - - 97 - - 97
- - - - - - 1372 - 1372
126,618 34,115 3,700 i - 2018 8,026 111,465 285,961
- - - - - - - 16,661 16,661
- - - - - 253 - - 253
- - - - - - 758 - 758
- - - - 930 - - - 930
126618 A5 3700 Pl 930 2,260 8784 128,126 304,563

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEZEEERAF
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A5 R RO aE

22. Reserve (cont’d) 22, %% (#)
Company ¥ N
Contributed Share based
Share surplus payment Accumulated
premium (note(iii)) reserve deficits Total
BARE LEROHAER
Bin&R (BB i)  AOIIRREEDR it o1
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT THT THT THET
At 1st January 2012 R-ZE——%—f—H 126,618 86,759 6,654 (238,284) (18,253)
Loss for the year FEEBR - - - (3,127) (8,127)
Share based payment AR 7 A BT B (5% - - 1,372 - 1,372
At 31st December 2012 ~ RZZ—=F
and 1st January 2013 +-A=+-8kK
—T—=%—-H-H 126,618 86,759 8,026 (241,411) (20,008)
Profit for the year FEEF - - - 87,881 87,381
Share based payment PAR 17 AR R 3R - - 758 - 758
At 31st December 2013 ~ R-T—=4
+-A=+-H 126,618 86,759 8,784 (153,530) 68,631
Notes: Mz -

(i)

The capital reserve of the Group arose from
acquisition of the remaining interests in a
subsidiary in 1999. The balance represents
the excess of the fair value attributable to the
net assets and liabilities acquired over the
consideration paid.

The merger reserve of the Group arising from
the Group reorganisation is determined by the
difference between the nominal value of shares of
the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation and the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares deemed to have been issued.

(i)

A& B 2 EARFERRN — NANFUWRE —FHH
BARZE TR - ARBRIEMBAFEER
BEZAREBHEXNREZER -

AEBREESAMEL Z A GRE - DRRE
SESEEAZMBARRMDEERIGIED #T
ZARFRMEEMRE B2 ZFRETE °

—ZT—=FF3% Annual Report 2013
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22. Reserve (cont’d)

Notes: (cont’d)

(i

V)

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares issued by the Company in
exchange for all the issued ordinary shares of
World Trade Bun Kee (BVI) Ltd. and the value
of net assets of the underlying subsidiaries
acquired by the Company in 2000. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus is distributable to the
shareholders, subject to a solvency test. At
the Group level, the contributed surplus is
reclassified into its component of reserves of the
underlying subsidiaries.

At 31st December 2012 and 2013, there is no
distributable reserve for the Company.

23. Borrowings

Current aiE

Trust receipt loans, secured (note (i)
Short term bank loan, secured (note (i)

Notes:

The carrying amounts of the trust receipt loans
and short term bank loan approximate their
fair values. As at 31st December 2013, the
banking facilities were secured by corporate
guarantees and bank deposits of approximately
HK$69,196,000 (2012: HK$94,348,000).

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EERAR

22, fkfim(48)

BieE : (A&

(i)

()

23. {&E

BHEMEFELIRE (HFE))
BHEMEMRTES (M)

KRB ZHEAEKTIEARR A AiEEWorld
Trade Bun Kee (BVI) Ltd. &30 2 317 & @Ak M 2
TZRHEEEEAQRMKESENBARN =
TETFEEEFEMERZEZR - BREBRE
—NN\—FREE(FER])  BARKREFEE
AENEEES IR ZBERT - AJHIR T’
HoEAKBZEE F BARBETOELEE
RAMT B A B 2 B ©

R_ZE——FR-_ZT—=F+_A=+—H ' &
A REAE D IRGER ©

2013 2012
=¥ —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR T
94,916 67,662
1,845 -
96,761 67,662

ERREERREHRTEREZ RO SEEES
AAERE N-T—=F+"A=+—0 "
1TRVE A RIVEIR KSR T1F 5049 69,196,000 7 7T
(ZZF— 1% : 94,348,000/ 7T) °



23. Borrowings (cont’d)

Notes: (cont’d)

Notes to the Financial Statements
MR ERME

23.

(i) The borrowings are denominated in the following

currencies:

Hong Kong dollars

BT

@iy The effective interest rates (per annum) of bank
borrowings at the financial reporting date are as

follows:

Trust receipt loans and
short term bank loan

24. Deferred taxation

Deferred tax assets to be recovered
after 12 months

Deferred tax liabilities to be settled
after 12 months

EREBIEER R RRITIEE

a8 (|)

BieE : (A&

(i)

(i)

R+ —E A&

BB AEE

MR+ —EARER

EEFARE

RETERER -

EEATFIERFIE :

2013 2012
=% —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT THET
96,761 67,662

RITEEZBRERNRLT

2013 2012
—E—=fF —ZT——F
% %
2.50 2.50

24, EIERIA
2013 2012
—2—-=F —T—CF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
(289) (44)
(289) (44)

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary

EEHBRRAEEINEANBARENEESE

differences under the liability method using tax
rates of the relevant subsidiaries applicable to the
period when the asset is expected to be realised
or the liability to be settled, based on tax rates
that have been substantively enacted by the
financial reporting date.

RREEGECHRMER 2B E (KM BHRE
B E R EEBM) (FR 2R -
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24. Deferred taxation (cont’d)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to
income tax levied by the same taxation authority
on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

The net movement on the deferred tax account is
as follows:

24. BIERIA (1)

BEATRMNIBASATIREEELENPRARE
HiH - MEEHREEMEEHRARES MF—
MR - —RIERTL A Bl A A B FEER TR
NABBRHRBEAFESE - RIFEERIRE
EEREN B EE AR -

EAETIARR B 2 BEFREN T

2013 2012

—Z—-=F —T-CF

HK$’000 HK$’000

THT FHIT

At 1st January n—HA—H (44) 97
Charged to income statement = 5% (FFEE10)

(Note 10) ©61) (141)

Charged to equity TERE R A HIRR (184) -

At 31st December RT=ZA=+—H (289) (44)

The movement in deferred tax assets and
liabilities during the year, without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the
same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred tax assets

At 1st January 2012
Charged to income statement

At 31st December 2012 and

1st January 2013 —ET—=%—H—H
Charged to income statement ez 7 HIBR

At 31st December 2013

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EERAR

Rn=—E——F—H—H
FEUR R 2R AR H0BR

R-E——F+-_A=1+—HK

BELERBREENRBENFARZEE R RNE
R RAEEZ AER) T

BEEHEEE
Decelerated tax
depreciation
ERBAE
HK$’000

97
©7)

R-F—=%+_"_H=+—H -
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24. Deferred taxation (cont’d)

Deferred tax liabilities

At 1st January 2012 R-—Z——%—f—H
Charged to income statement TR F ik

At 31st December 2012 RZE——F+-A=+—-AK
and 1st January 2013 —T—=5—-H—-H

Charged to income statement Tz ik

Charged to equity TR kR

At 31st December 2013 RZE—=F+ZA=+—H

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for
tax losses carried forward to the extent that the
realisation of the related tax benefit through the
future taxable profits is probable. The Group
did not recognise deferred income tax assets
of HK$8,826,000 (2012: HK$8,189,000) in
respect of accumulated tax losses amounting
to HK$49,084,000 (2012: HK$46,801,000) as
at 31st December 2013, that can be carried
forward against future taxable income. As at
31st December 2013, the accumulated tax
losses amounting to HK$8,636,000 (2012:
HK$5,572,000) will be expired in five years. There
is no expiry period for the other tax losses.

A5 R RO aE

24. BIERIA (1)

EEHBEEE
Remeasurement
gain of
Accelerated post-employment
tax depreciation benefit obligations Total
BER:
R EE: )
MERFRE EMERE ]
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
THET TET TET
(44) - (44)
(44) - (44)
(61) - (61)
- (184) (184)
(105) (184) (289)

RIEFTSTRIE & 2 T A e AR RA T 15 M s Al B i R
P B SR ) R T B AT AS B 2 B IB B R (E
R AEBUY AR T —=FF+_A=+—
B A A8 A R R E R A 2 BT R IEES
849,084,000/ 7T (= Z — —4F : 46,801,000/5
7T ) MERRIE E FT1S A 1E & = 8,826,000 8 L (= F
— = :8,189,000/87L) - R=ZE—=F+—A1
=+—H ZZ 25 HIEEEES,636,000% 7T
(ZZ——4F :5572,00087C) * BRAFRE
5 - AR IEASIE N R M HARE o
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25. Trade and other payables 25, BHRHEMEMRIEA

Group Company
F5H F0F
2013 2012 2013 2012
= | —T-_F| ZIB-=F| T _F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT THT TET TAT
Trade payables B S ENFIA 22,483 24,654 - -
Accrued expenses and BIRRER K
other payables (note) Ho A e R (Ff ) 37,173 26,592 1,696 1,434
59,656 51,246 1,696 1,434
Notes: FdaE -

Included in other payables of the Group was a
provision for a customer claim of HK$3,694,000 (2012:
HK$3,694,000) made for a project in Hong Kong in
prior years. During the year, management reassessed
the circumstances and considered that the amount of
provision made as at 31st December 2013 remains
adequate but not excessive.

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade
payables is as follows:

BREEAEENEMENRFT  RBEFE  ANEE
— N EBHIAE B {EH 3,694,000 (T — — 4 :
3,694,000 ) MEFHERE RAFERN - B
BEFIERIERREZBEHER=_Z—=F+=A
=t+—BNEATRTBE -

REBEE ZRNFTRNKRE DT

Within 30 days 30 RARA
31 to 60 days 31 XZE60X
61 to 90 days 61 XZE 90K
Over 90 days A 90K

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EERAR

2013 2012
—E—=F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET T
18,842 19,637
2,192 3,085
1,205 998

244 934
22,483 24,654
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25. Trade and other payables (cont’d) 25. BHRHMEMRE(E)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and AEBZESGREMENFBZERSEIZAT
other payables are denominated in the following EHEHE -
currencies:
2013 2012
—E—=F —T——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FA&T
Hong Kong dollars PETT 39,481 31,232
usD ET 14,951 14,736
RMB ARHE 4,305 4,197
EURO BT 182 195
Other currencies Hi B 737 886
59,656 51,246
26. Operating lease commitment 26. {EEHEHKIE
Group
-3 L]
2013 2012
—F—=% —F=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFET T
Land and buildings T RIEF
Not later than one year BB —F 17,220 17,374
Later than one year and BB —FENBARRF
not later than five years 36,051 52,558
Later than five years fHiB A F - =
53,271 69,932
Equipment and motor vehicles HERAE
Not later than one year BB —F 710 772
Later than one year and
not later than five years BB —FENBRRF 337 958
1,047 1,730
54,318 71,662
The lease terms are between one to ten years, HEHNTFE—Z2+E FENHEESHNEER
and the majority of lease agreements are ZIHR1B IR TH BB o

renewable at the end of the lease period at
market rate.
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M IR E

27. Notes to the consolidated statement

of cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment, net (note)
Interest income
Interest expense
Write-back of trade and
other payables
Provision for/(reversal of) provision
for impairment of trade and
other receivables
Provision for impairment
of inventories
Share based payment
Changes in working capital:
Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Increase in trade and
other receivables
Increase in trade and
other payables

Net cash generated from operations

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEZEEERLE

27. RERKRERME

REEBFREZHERE

Tt A A1)
BLNFIEL AR

W% - BB RREHOITE

R BEFE ()
MEWA
MBS H
B 5 MM S 3R E

B 5 REAMEK
FORER R, (T )

FERER R

VARRD 7R LB B0 SR

HEASE

FERL,(Eh0)
B 5 NEMRUKFIE N

B 5 MEMREN TGN

REEBMSHRFE

2013 2012
—E—=% —F——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FBT
20,258 16,954
1,936 1,767
216 13
(863) (745)
1,729 2,001
- (634)
128 (10)
2,144 2,561
758 1,372
15,149 (16,592)
(19,291) (1,746)
8,667 690
30,831 5,631
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27. Notes to the consolidated statement 27. FERERERME(E)
of cash flows (cont’d)

Cash flows from operating activities R EE S HSHRE ()
(cont’d)
Note: Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and W5E - HEWE - BE R&EZFTSHRIERE

equipment comprises:

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
T#T FIT
Net book amount AR FAE 310 23
Loss on disposal HEZEE (216) (13)
Proceeds from disposal & FT{S RIE 94 10
Represented by: K&
Cash e 94 10
28. Related party transactions 28. BEALEZSH
Key management compensation TESE A S RN
2013 2012
—E—=f —F——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHIT
Salaries and other short term e REMEAES B
employee benefits 13,695 12,870
Pension costs — defined RINERAS — EREHRETE]
contribution plans 126 192
Share based payment AR 1 BT 2 R 602 1,073
14,423 14,135
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29. Ultimate holding company 29. REEKRAF

RRREERR EREEBRHFSITMAKL
Z Singapore Zhongxin Investment Company

The Directors of the Company consider
Singapore Zhongxin Investment Company
Limited ([ Singapore Zhongxin]) A& A
7] e Singapore Zhongxin AR &) Z % = Lai
Guanglinfe 2 ERERER - AR RRKE
HA e

Limited (“Singapore Zhongxin”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, as
being the ultimate holding company. Singapore
Zhongxin is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Lai Guanglin, a director of the Company, who is
considered to be the ultimate controlling party.

30. EEXMBLTEH

30. Particulars of the principal

subsidiaries
Percentage
aalt
Particulars of
issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital Attributable to Held by
Name Principal Activities ERTRERE the Group subsidiaries
10 FERE B/ gfEs FRERE  WELELEH
Incorporated and operating
in Hong Kong
EEBRIRAE
Bun Keg (International) Limited Trading of construction materials, 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100 100
mainly pipes and fittings 3,000,000 non-voting
in Hong Kong deferred shares of HK$1 each
e (Bl ) BRAR REARSRENH (FEREE 100REREE B SRk
REMH) 2B 3,000,000 R &R EME 1ETTL
ERFEETR
Hamerwind Logistic Company Provision of warehousing and 800 ordinary shares of HK$100 each 100 100
Limited logistic services in Hong Kong
REMRARAT REBRERHT KRR 800 EREE 10087T.2 Lk

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EERAR
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30. Particulars of the principal 30. XERBELATEH ()
subsidiaries (cont’d)
Percentage
aalt
Particulars of
issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital Attributable to Held by
Name Principal Activities ERTRERE the Group subsidiaries
2R TERE k¥ EREs FRERE  WELEREH
Established and operating
inthe PRC
ERER T RS
Bun Kee Building Material Assembling construction HK$9,000,000 100 100
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd.# materials in the PRC
ek (BN BRAR R ERERENH 9,000,000/ 7
Established and operating
in Macao
ERFRTREE
Bun Kee Building Material and Trading of construction materials, MOP50,000 100 100
Equipment (Macao) Co., Ltd. mainly pipes and fittings in Macao
W RRECE)ERAR  NRFERENH (FEAKE 50,0002 P9
RE#)Z2B5
# The company is incorporated in the PRC as a # ZA R ERHP B 2 INEEE AT

wholly foreign-owned enterprise.
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Five Year Financial Summary

AFEMEERE

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—ETNEF “Z-TF —2——F —E-C-F —Z-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
AT AT AT THT THT
Results 5
Revenue N 452,018 385,145 438,395 455,127 504,143
(Loss)/profit before income tax AT (E518) /% 7l (25,272) (13,231) 15,664 16,954 20,258
Income tax credit/(expense) BiEss, /(i) 2,221 (3,434) (2,791) (3,254) (3,597)
(Loss)/profit for the year from  HEZEER 2
continuing operations FE (518),/aFl (23,051) (16,665) 12,873 13,700 16,661
Loss for the year from RIFBEER Y
discontinued operations FEBHE
Seamless steel pipes EAEHE - (135,563) (148) = -
Investment properties REME (16,346) (14,855) - = -
Loss for the year from BRIFSEXE L
discontinued operations FEER (16,346) (150,418) (148) - -
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(B8)/&H (39,397) (167,083) 12,725 13,700 16,661
Attributable to: FE1E -
Equity holders of the Company A2 BIRER A A (39,662) (122,769) 13,280 13,700 16,661
Non-controlling interests JEER M 265 (44,314) (555) = -
(39,397) (167,083) 12,725 13,700 16,661
Assets and liabilities EERERE
Total assets BEE 924,788 598,355 422,983 435,681 491,950
Total liabilties Bak (476,645) (323,062) (125,531) (123,055) (160,722)
Total equity iR 448,143 275,293 297,457 312,626 331,228
Notes: MI5E -
1.  The results of operation of investment properties 1. REYPELESB(N_Z—ZTFARILELE)R

segment (which was discontinued in 2010) prior to

2009 have not been restated or reclassified.
2. The results of manufacturing and sale of seamless steel

pipes segment (which was discontinued in 2011) prior
to 2010 have not been restated or reclassified.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR
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HERHEERHNELENB(N_T—FR
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